
 
 

  
 

 

 

 

 

Prosser Memorial Health 

Board of Commissioners 

 

 

 

Board Packet 

December 17, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Whitehead Conference Room  
 

  

{‘5 Prosser 
« Memorial Health 

{‘5 Prosser 
« Memorial Health 

{‘5 Prosser 
« Memorial Health 

{‘5 Prosser 
« Memorial Health 



December 15, 2020 Board of Commissioners Work Session Agenda

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS – WORK SESSION
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2020

6:00 PM - WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM
AGENDA

COMMISSIONERS: STAFF:
Stephen Kenny, Ph.D. Craig Marks, CEO
Sharon Dietrich, M.D. Merry Fuller, CNO/COO
Glenn Bestebreur David Rollins, CFO
Susan Reams Shannon Hitchcock, CCO
Keith Sattler Kevin Hardiek, CIO
Brandon Bowden Kristi Mellema, CQO
Neilan McPartland Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO

GUESTS: Kurt Broeckelmann, Architect, bcDG
Paul Kramer, Project Director, NV5
Meg Hohnholt, Project Manager, NV5

I. CALL TO ORDER
A. Pledge of Allegiance

II. SERVICES
A. Replacement Facility Update and Plan

1. Draft New Hospital Vision (Attachment D & E) Craig
2 Schematic Design Review (Attachment J) Kurt
3. Natural Gas vs. Electricity Paul
4. CPARB PRC Review (Attachment E1) Paul/Meg

III. QUALITY
A.  2020 Environment of Care (EOC) Report and 2021 EOC Plan (Attachment EE) Kristi

IV. ADJOURN

‘23:? {:8 P ro s s e r V' 
EmP'Wees Memorial Health Service 
Medical Staff Promote Teamwork 
Quality Integrity 
Services Respect 
Financial Mission: To improve the health of our community. Excellence 

Carol Allen
Typewriter
with packet



December 17, 2020 Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
THURSDAY, December 17, 2020

6:00 PM, WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM
AGENDA

COMMISSIONERS: STAFF:
Stephen Kenny, Ph.D. Craig Marks, CEO
Sharon Dietrich, M.D. Merry Fuller, CNO/COO
Glenn Bestebreur David Rollins, CFO
Susan Reams Kevin Hardiek, CIO
Keith Sattler Shannon Hitchcock, CCO
Brandon Bowden Kristi Mellema, CQO
Neilan McPartland Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO

GUEST: Dr. Terry Murphy, COS

I. CALL TO ORDER
A. Pledge of Allegiance

II. PUBLIC COMMENT

III. APPROVE AGENDA
Action Requested – Agenda

IV. CONSENT AGENDA
Action Requested – Consent Agenda

A. Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes for November 19, 2020
B. Payroll and AP Vouchers #154819 through #155295 dated 11-12-20 through 12-09-20 in the amount of

$11,466,159.34. Board Policies:  #100.0005; 1000.006; 100.0007; #100.0008. Surplus Items Resolution
: #0013016; #001225.

V. MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT
A. Medical Staff Report and Credentialing Dr. Murphy

Action Requested – Advancement from Provisional
1.  Advancement from Provisional

Lindsey Smith, DO – Active staff privileges in Emergency Medicine effective
December 17, 2020 through June 25, 2022.

Brandon Peterson, MD – Consulting staff privileges in Pathology effective December 17, 2020 through
June 25, 2022.



December 17, 2020 Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda

James Giles, MD – Telemedicine privileges in Neurology effective December 17, 2020 through
June 25, 2022.

Elizabeth Walz, MD – Telemedicine privileges in Neurology effective December 17, 2020 through
June 25, 2022.

2. New Appointment
Action Requested – New Appointment and Requested Clinical Privileges

H. Benno Marx, MD – Provisional/Courtesy staff with requested
privileges in Family Medicine effective December 17, 2020 through June 24, 2021.

Robert J. Erwin, Jr., CRNA – Provisional/Allied Health staff with requested privileges in Anesthesia effective
December 17, 2020 through June 24, 2021.

3. Reappointment
Action Requested – Reappointment and Requested Clinical Privileges
Tarvinder Singh, MD – Reappointment to Telemedicine staff with requested clinical privileges in
Neurology from December 17, 2020 through December 16, 2022.

Corey White, DO – Reappointment to Telemedicine staff with requested clinical privileges in Neurology
from December 17, 2020 through December 16, 2022.

4. Category Change Request
Action Requested – Category Change Request
Richard J. Unger, DO – Privileged in General Surgery, requesting to change clinical privileges category from
Locum Tenens to Active Staff, effective January 1, 2021.

5. Rules and Regulations of the Medical Staff (Attachment HH) Dr. Murphy
Action Requested – Rules and Regulations of the Medical Staff

B. 2021 Medical Staff Model& Provider Recruitment/Succession Plan (Attachment P) Dr. Sollers/Craig
Action Requested – 2021 Medical Staff Model

VI. FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP
A. Review Financial Reports for November 2020 (Attachment S) David

Action Requested – Financial Reports

B. Review 2021 Operating and Capital Budget (Attachment T) David
Action Requested – 2021 Operating and Capital Budget

C. COVID-19 Financial Plan (Attachments Y & Z) David/Craig

D. PMH Foundation New Board Members – Shelby Moore and Samantha Markus Shannon
Action Requested – Shelby Moore and Samantha Markus



December 17, 2020 Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda

VII.  EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT
A.  AFSCME Contract 2021-2023 Bryon/David

Action Requested – AFSCME Contract 2021-2023

VIII. SERVICES
A. Review 2021 PMH Strategic Plan (Attachment A) Craig

Action Requested – 2021 PMH Strategic Plan

B. Review 2021 PMH Marketing Plan (Attachment B) Shannon
Action Requested – 2021 PMH Marketing Plan

C. Review 2021 IT Plan (Attachment C) Kevin
Action Requested – 2021 PMH IT Plan

D. PMH Replacement Facility Vision and Plan (Attachment D & E) Craig
Action Requested – PMH Replacement Facility Vision and Plan

E.  Completion of Schematic Design for PMH Replacement Facility (Attachment I) Craig
Action Requested – PMH Replacement Facility Schematic Design

IV. QUALITY
A. Review 2020 Environment of Care (EOC) Report and 2021 EOC Plan (Attachment EE) Kristi

Action Requested –2021 PMH Environment of Care Plan

B. COVID-19 Update Merry/Dr. Sollers

C. Legislative and Political Updates Commissioner Bestebreur

D. CEO/Operations Report Craig

X. ADJOURN



2020 -  Patient Care Scorecard
Major Goal Areas & Indicators 2019 Goal Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 2020 YTD 2019 2018

Quality
Left Without Being Seen (ED & iVantage) <1.0% 1.24% 0.90% 1.03% 0.19% 0.86% 0.41% 0.61% 0.13% 0.78% 1.43% 0.65% 0.79% 1.11% 1.00%
All-Cause Unplanned 30 Day Inpatient Readmissions (AC & iVantage) <2.7% 2.33% 6.67% 9.30% 7.89% 2.94% 0.00% 4.76% 1.82% 0.00% 2.63% 0.00% 3.45% 5.4% 2.7%
Sepsis - Early Management Bundle  (AC) >84.6% 33.33% 50.00% N/A 66.67% 100.00% 100.00% 66.67% 100.00% N/A 100.00% 0.00% 71.43% 80.0% 84.6%
Head CT Interpretation within 45 minutes - Stroke  (DI) >90% 100.00% 100.00% 66.67% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 80.00% 92.59% 62.16% N/A
Healthcare Associated Infection Rate per 100 Inpatient Days <0.07% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.29% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.10% 0.07% 0.10%
Diabetes Management - Outpatient A1C>9 or missing result  (PT) <30.25% 37.43% 30.27% 32.62% 28.30% 32.09% 33.33% 21.71% 25.00% 24.56% 20.54% 22.29% 27.94% 30.25% 34.50%
Medication Reconciliation Completed >90% 89.26% 99.38% 44.72% 89.90% 55.76% 42.31% 43.64% 34.84% 36.83% 36.85% 41.43% 47.08% 90.00% 2019 value is 85.16%
Turnaround time of 30 minutes or less for STAT testing (LAB) <30 Minutes 34 31 34 38 39 37 36 36 38 53 34 37.27273 30 30
Median Time to ECG (CP & iVantage) < 7 Minutes 6 4 6 3.5 7 7 6 11 12 7 7 7 7 NA
Surgical Site Infection  (OR) <2.0% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 2.27% 1.89% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.36% 0.3% 0.3%
Colonoscopy Follow-up  (OR/Clinic & iVantage) >90% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% N/A N/A 83.33% 87.50% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 95.65% 90.0% NA
Safe Medication Scanning >90% 88.80% 91.30% 93.82% 90.55% 94.48% 93.70% 92.89% 93.66% 92.15% 94.16% 95.27% 92.80% 90.0% NA
*Overall Quality Performance Benchmark (iVantage) >48 48 48 48 58 58 58 49 49 49 44 44 48 48 0
*Inductions <39 Weeks without Clinical Indications  (OB & iVantage) <1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 3
*Falls with Injury <3 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 2 3 3

Green at or above Goal  (4)
Yellow within 10% of Goal  (2)
Red More than 10% below Goal  (0)

(‘bProsser 
‘4 Memorial Health 

{‘bprosser 
‘1 Memorial Health 

(‘bProsser 
LI Memorial Health 



2020 -  Strategic Plan Scorecard
Major Goal Areas & Indicators 2020 Goal Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 2020 YTD 2019 Avg 2018 Avg

Patient Loyalty
IP - "Would Recommend" > 85.1% 84.4% 85.7% 97.2% 95.7% 84.4% 88.9% 90.7% 95.5% 88.9% 87.0% 85.3% 88.3% 85.1% 83.8%
ED - "Would Recommend" > 80.7% 73.8% 80.0% 85.0% 77.4% 83.3% 91.3% 72.7% 80.0% 22.0% 80.0% 75.0% 82.0% 80.3% 80.7%
Acute Care - "Would Recommend" > 79.7% 80.9% 80.0% 94.4% 90.0% 82.6% 81.3% 86.2% 92.3% 75.0% 84.4% 85.7% 84.4% 78.6% 79.7%
OB - "Would Recommend" > 92.2% 93.3% 92.3% 100.0% 100.0% 86.4% 92.9% 90.7% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 85.0% 93.1% 92.2% 88.6%
Outpatient Surgery - "Would Recommend" > 91% 86.4% 83.3% 94.3% 85.0% 96.3% 95.2% 95.2% 87.5% 100.0% 70.0% 100.0% 89.8% 91.0% 84.9%
Swing Bed - "Would Recommend" > 94.1% 100.0% 50.0% 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 50.0% 100.0% N/A 50.0% 76.2% 85.3% 94.1%
Clinic - "Would Recommend" > 87.1% 92.9% 91.1% 87.9% 85.2% 87.0% 83.3% 86.0% 83.1% 92.3% 91.5% 75.4% 87.4% 87.1% 85.2%
Outpatient - "Would Recommend" > 88.4% 88.5% 88.5% 85.0% 85.0% 97.3% 91.7% 94.0% 88.6% 88.0% 85.2% 89.7% 88.7% 88.4% 84.7%
Medical Staff Development
Medical Staff Turnover < 0.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 2.1% 0.0% 0.2% 0.2% 0.6%
Specialty Clinic Visits > 1063 1,197 1,101 1,021 588 686 807 931 939 1,027 1,192 975 951 950 872
Benton City Clinic Visits > 1005 1,118 950 984 643 723 856 930 740 897 893 767 864 958 857
Prosser RHC Clinic Visits > 1052 1,030 1,011 988 842 903 1,152 1,158 1,388 1,552 1,732 1,556 1,210 960 821
Grandview Clinic Visits > 618 702 724 650 474 570 564 643 585 578 589 514 599 568 N/A
Women's Health Center > 709 673 605 633 455 442 583 646 603 629 627 593 590 469 N/A
Comprehensive Pain Clinic > 91 86 83 81 28 58 68 35 42 60 30 56 57 80 55
*# of Active Medical Staff > 51 43 43 43 43 43 43 44 47 48 47 47 44 41 40
Employee Development
Average Recruitment Time (days) < 28 19 28 50 41 23 37 39 31 39 25 43 34 28 N/A
# of Open Positions (Vacancies) < 23 35.0 27.0 27.0 24.0 22.0 21.0 20.0 43.0 39.0 43.0 28.0 29.9 23 8.8
Hours of Overtime - Overtime/Total Hours Worked < 4.5% 7.9% 5.4% 6.0% 4.0% 4.2% 5.5% 6.1% 6.1% 6.2% 5.7% 5.4% 5.7% 5.7% 4.5%
Agency - Cost/Total Labor < 8.7% 7.7% 9.0% 10.3% 8.1% 4.5% 5.6% 5.3% 6.0% 7.5% 6.7% 6.7% 7.6% 14.5% 10.5%
Turnover Rate < 0.7% 0.4% 0.4% 0.7% 1.1% 0.4% 0.0% 0.0% 1.0% 0.7% 1.4% 1.0% 0.6% 0.7% 0.7%
Timely Evaluations > 79.6% 89.0% 54.0% 91.0% 81.0% 54.0% 78.0% 85.7% 74.2% 69.6% 48.0% 63.6% 71.6% 79.6% 60.5%
Education Hours/FTE > 2.15 1.57 0.01 1.93 0.98 0.55 0.86 0.83 1.71 1.49 1.49 1.81 1.20 1.55 2.15
New Hire (Tenure) < 1 year < 10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 1% 0% 0% 0% N/A
* Lost Workdays due to On-the-Job Injuries < 167 8.00 8.00 8.00 16.00 8.00 15.00 1.00 0 2.00 13.00 20.00 9.00 167 163
Quality
ED Encounters - Left Without Being Seen < 1.0% 1.2% 0.9% 1.03% 0.2% 0.9% 0.4% 0.6% 0.1% 0.8% 1.4% 0.7% 0.7% 1% 1.0%
*Falls with Injury < 3 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 2 3 3
Healthcare Associated Infection Rate per 100 Inpatient Days < 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.1% 0.1%
All-Cause Unplanned Readmissions within 30 Days < 2.7% 2.3% 6.7% 9.3% 7.9% 2.9% 0.0% 4.8% 1.8% 0.0% 2.6% 0.0% 3.5% 5.4% 2.7%
Diabetes Management - Outpatient A1C>9 or missing result < 30.3% 37% 30% 33% 28% 32% 33% 22% 25% 25% 21% 22% 28% 30.3% 34.50%
Services
ED Visits > 1,023 1,131 1,000 874 526 700 723 819 799 767 769 769 807 1,016 930
Inpatient Admissions > 86 83 77 72 70 79 91 79 93 87 69 98 82 83 75
OB Deliveries > 38 38 26 38 36 39 38 57 48 45 35 45 40 37 31
Surgeries and Endoscopies > 126 109 100 90 32 44 110 128 132 101 129 123 100 118 117
Diagnostic Imaging Procedures > 2,116 2,466 2,308 2,078 1,358 1,784 2,159 2,225 2,334 2,348 2,667 2,622 2,214 1,957 1,649
Lab Procedures > 12,262 12,098 11,587 9,776 7,900 10,591 12,119 13,249 13,003 12,306 12,996 12,830 11,678 11,051 9,671
Adjusted Patient Days >1,769 1,603 1,490 1,355 871 1,250 1,376 1,364 1,568 1,337 1,634 1,332 1,380 1,624 1,373
Therapy Visits > 1,706 1,692 1,792 1,374 324 959 1,131 1,247 1,399 1,454 1,462 1,300 1,285 1,145 1,084
Outpatient Special Procedures Visits > 225 268 226 319 222 211 189 198 235 265 306 267 246 224 225
Financial Performance
Net Days in Accounts Receivable < 48.62 59.97 64.28 61.84 48.35 48.00 52.15 54.46 56.64 57.18 60.35 63.22 63.22 63.79 50.96
*Total Margin > 7.06% 4.50% 1.20% -0.20% 16.40% 18.90% 32.62% 11.40% -33.40% 19.00% 12.70% -216.20% 2.70% 5.30% 1.8%
Net Operating Revenue/FTE > $16,753 16,075$ 14,867$ 15,320$ 19,583$ 19,245$ 22,112$ 16,939$ 15,719$ 22,234$ 16,686$ 5,332$ 16,737$ $15,794 $16,094
Labor as % of net Revenue < 60.2% 60.3% 65.0% 63.8% 53.8% 53.5% 43.2% 60.6% 80.8% 52.1% 53.3% 191.6% 61.3% 59.6% 62.6%
Operating Expense/FTE < $15,760 15,534$ 15,443$ 15,969$ 16,562$ 15,823$ 14,866$ 16,479$ 11,699$ 18,165$ 14,796$ 16,994$ 15,666$ $15,190 $16,190
*Days Cash on Hand > 120.39 96.39 93.02 97.86 152.33 221.00 228.66 229.29 231.33 222.58 220.04 183.42 183.42 120.39 108.23
Commercial % > 28.7% 27.1% 27.7% 31.7% 29.7% 28.1% 30.0% 31.3% 27.4% 27.8% 28.4% 30.1% 29.0% 28.7% 28.2%
Total Labor Expense/Total Expense < 62% 62.4% 62.6% 61.2% 63.7% 65.1% 64.3% 62.3% 60.2% 63.8% 60.1% 60.1% 61.3% 62% 63%

Green at or above Goal
Yellow within 10% of Goal
Red More than 10% below Goal
*Cumulative Total - goal is year end number

(‘HDI’OSSGI' 
‘! Memorial Health 



BOARD WORK SESSION November 17, 2020 WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT STAFF PRESENT GUESTS COMMUNITY

MEMBERS
 Dr. Steve Kenny
 Keith Sattler
 Glenn Bestebreur
 Susan Reams
 Brandon Bowden
 Sharon Dietrich, M.D.
 Neilan McPartland

 Craig Marks, CEO
 Merry Fuller, CNO/COO
 David Rollins, CFO
 Shannon Hitchcock, CCO
 Kevin Hardiek, CIO
 Kristi Mellema, CCO
 Dr. Brian Sollers

 Kurt Broeckelmann, Architect
 Paul Kramer, Owner’s Rep.

None

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP
I.   CALL TO ORDER Meeting was called to order by

commissioner Kenny at 6:00 p.m.
None None

II.   SERVICES
A. Replacement Facility Update

A.1. Draft New Hospital Vision
(Attachment A & B)

Craig Marks reviewed the Draft New
Hospital Vision which was based on
feedback from the staff, Board and
Medical Staff.

The Board will be asked to approve
the Vision for the new hospital in
December.

None.

A.2. Design Update Kurt Broeckelmann gave a design update
on the site plan, floor plans and building
exteriors. There was discussion regarding
utilization of electric vs. natural gas at the
new hospital.

Administration
will follow-up with
Cascade Natural
Gas Company and
Benton Public
Utilities District to

Vision 
Patients 
Employees 
Medical Staff 
Quality 
Services 
Financial 

{‘4 ‘3 Prosser 
Memor ia l  Heal th  

Mission: To improve the health of our community. 

Values 
Accountability 
Service 
Promote Teamwork 
Integrity 
Respect 
Excellence 

Vision 
Patients 
Employees 
Medical Staff 
Quality 
Services 
Financial 

(1.4 ‘5 Prosser 
Memor ia l  Heal th  

Mission: To improve the health of our community. 

XV» ‘\ 

Values 
Accountability 
Service 
Promote Teamwork 
Integrity 
Respect 
Excellence 



finalize their rates
for the next five
years.

A.3. GC/CM Task Force Craig Marks and Paul Kramer discussed
the development for the naming of a
GC/CM Task Force.  The Task Force will
meet four times in December and January
2021.  The following Board Members
volunteered to be members of the Task
Force:  Keith Sattler, Sharon Dietrich and
Susan Reams.  Dr. Steve Kenny agreed to
be an alternate if needed.

None, information only. None.

B. Draft 2021 Strategic Plan
Review (Attachment D)

The Draft 2021 Strategic Plan was
reviewed by each Pillar Champion.

The Board will be asked to approve
the 2021 Strategic Plan in December.

None.

At 8:15 p.m. the Board announced that they would go into Executive Session which was expected to last 25 minutes.
III.  EXECUTIVE SESSION
A. RCW 42.30.110(d) – Contract -

To review negotiations on the
performance of public bid
contracts when public
knowledge regarding such
consideration would cause a
likelihood of increased costs.

The Board resumed their regular business meeting at 8:43.
IV. ADJOURN
There being no further regular business to attend to, Commissioner Kenny adjourned the meeting at 8:43 p.m.



BOARD MEETING NOVEMBER 19, 2020 WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT STAFF PRESENT MEDICAL STAFF GUESTS
 Dr. Steve Kenny
 Glenn Bestebreur
 Susan Reams
 Keith Sattler
 Sharon Dietrich, M.D.
 Brandon Bowden
 Neilan McPartland

 Craig Marks, CEO
 Merry Fuller, CNO/COO
 David Rollins, CFO
 Kevin Hardiek, CIO
 Shannon Hitchcock, CCO
 Kristi Mellema

 Dr. Robert Wenger

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP
I.    Call to Order Meeting was called to order by Commissioner

Sattler at 6:00 p.m.
I.A. Pledge of Allegiance

II.  Public Comment None.
III.  APPROVE AGENDA Commissioner Bestebreur made a Motion to

approve the Agenda.  The Motion was
seconded by Commissioner Reams and
passed with 7 in favor, 0 opposed and 0
abstained.

None.

IV.  APPROVE CONSENT
AGENDA

A.  Board of Commissioners
Meeting Minutes for
October 29, 2020.

B.  Payroll & AP Vouchers
#154515 – 154818, dated

Commissioner Bestebreur made a Motion to
approve the Consent Agenda.  The Motion
was seconded by Commissioner Dietrich
and passed with 7 in favor, 0 opposed, and 0
abstained.

None.

Vision 
Patients 
Employees 
Medical Staff 
Quality 
Services 
Financial 

{:8 Prosser 
Memor ia l  Heal th  

Mission: To improve the health of our community. 

Values 
Accountability 
Service 
Promote Teamwork 
Integrity 
Respect 
Excellence 

Vision 
Patients 
Employees 
Medical Staff 
Quality 
Services 
Financial 

(‘1 ‘5 Prosser 
Memor ia l  Heal th  

Mission: To improve the health of our community. 

Values 
Accountability 
Service 
Promote Teamwork 
Integrity 
Respect 
Excellence 



10.23.20 through
11.11.20.

Surplus Items Resolution:
#0013335; #001038.

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP

V.  MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT
A.  Medical Staff Report

and Credentialing
Dr. Wenger presented the following Advancement
from Provisional Appointment:

Pratic Bhattacharya, MD – Telemedicine privileges
in Neurology effective November 19, 2020 through
May 28, 2022.

A motion to approve the Advancement
from Provisional  Appointment and
requested Clinical Privileges that have
been reviewed and recommended by the
Department Chair, the Credentialing
Committee and Medical Executive
Committee for the following provider
was made by Commissioner Bestebreur
and seconded by Commissioner Reams.
The Motion passed with 7 in favor, 0
opposed, and 0 abstained.

 Pratic Bhattacharya, MD

None.

Dr. Wenger presented the following New
Appointments:

Tad White, DO – Provisional/Courtesy staff with
requested privileges in Family Medicine effective
November 19, 2020 through May 29, 2021.

Ravi Pande, MD – Provisional/Telemedicine staff
with requested privileges in Neurology effective
November 19, 2020 through May 29, 2021.

James Jordan, MD – Provisional/Telemedicine staff
with requested privileges in Neurology effective
November 19, 2020 through May 29, 2021.

A motion to approve the New
Appointments and requested Clinical
Privileges that have been reviewed and
recommended by the Department Chair,
the Credentialing Committee and Medical
Executive Committee for the following
providers was made by Commissioner
Reams and seconded by Commissioner
Sattler.  The Motion passed with 7 in
favor, 0 opposed, and 0 abstained.

 Tad White, DO
 Ravi Pande, MD
 James Jordan, MD
 Monjari Gillian, MD
 Jake Vrdoljak, MD

None.



Monjari Gillian, MD – Provisional/Telemedicine staff
with requested privileges in Diagnostic Radiology
effective November 19, 2020 through May 29, 2021.
Jake Vrdoljak, MD – Provisional/Telemedicine staff
with requested privileges in Diagnostic Radiology
effective November 19, 2020 through May 29, 2021.

Dr. Wenger presented the following
Reappointments:

Ketan Kale, MD – Reappointment to Courtesy staff
with requested clinical privileges in Hospitalist
Medicine from November 19, 2020 through
November 18, 2022.

Katherine Cayetano, MD – Reappointment to
Consulting staff with requested clinical privileges in
Pulmonology from November 19, 2020 through
November 18, 2022.

Naveen Rawat, MD – Reappointment to Consulting
staff with requested clinical privileges in
Pulmonology from November 19, 2020 through
November 18, 2022.

Thomas Ballard, MD – Reappointment to Locum
Tenens staff with requested clinical privileges in
Diagnostic Radiology from November 19, 2020
through November 18, 2022.

Randi Lindstrom, DO – Reappointment to Locum
Tenens staff with requested clinical privileges in
Emergency Medicine from November 19, 2020
through November 18, 2022.

Minal Bhanushali, MD – Reappointment to
Telemedicine staff with requested clinical privileges
in Neurology from November 19, 2020 through
November 18, 2022.

A motion to approve the Reappointment
and requested Clinical Privileges that
have been reviewed and recommended
by the Department Chair, the
Credentialing Committee and the Medical
Executive Committee for the following
providers was made by Commissioner
Reams and seconded Commissioner
Dietrich.   The Motion passed with 7 in
favor, 0 opposed and 0 abstained.

 Ketan Kale, MD
 Katherine Cayetano, MD
 Naveen Rawat, MD
 Thomas Ballard, MD
 Randi Lindstrom, DO
 Minal Bhanushali, MD
 Ravi Menon, MD

None.



Ravi Menon, MD – Reappointment to Telemedicine
staff with requested clinical privileges in Neurology
from November 19, 2020 through November 18,
2022.

B.  CRNA Contract
(Attachment FF)

Merry Fuller gave a summary of the proposed CRNA
Contract.

Commissioner Bestebreur made a Motion
to approve the CRNA Contract as
presented (Attachment FF), which was
seconded by Commissioner Dietrich.  The
Motion was passed with 7 in favor, 0
opposed and 0 abstained.

None.

VI. FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP                                              DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP

A.  Review Financial
Reports for October
2020 (Attachment W)

David Rollins presented the October 2020 Financial
Reports.

Commissioner Reams made a Motion to
accept the Financial Reports for October
2020, which was seconded by
Commissioner Bowden. The Motion
passed with 7 in favor, 0 opposed and 0
abstained.

None.

B.  COVID-19 Financial Plan
(Attachment AA)

David Rollins presented the COVID-19 Financial Plan
(Attachment AA) and the COVID-19 Financial
Projections (Attachment BB) through October 31,
2020.

None. None.

C. Review Draft 2021
Operating and Capital
Budgets (Attachment X &
Y)

David Rollins gave an overview of the 2021 Draft
Operating Budget (Attachment X) and the Draft
Capital Budget (Attachment Y).

None. The 2021 Draft
Operating Budget
and the Draft
Capital Budget will
be taken to the
Board for approval
in December.

D.  2021 Budget and Property
Tax Request for County
Commissioners
(Attachment Z & ZZ)

David Rollins presented and explained the Property
Tax Resolution #1047 and the Certification of the
Property Tax Levy.

Commissioner Bestebreur made a Motion
to approve the Property Tax Resolution
#1047 and the Property Tax Levy #1047
which was seconded by Commissioner
Dietrich. The Motion passed with 7 in
favor, 0 opposed and 0 abstained.

None.



VII. PATIENT LOYALTY DISCUSSION ACTION                                       FOLLOW-UP
A. Studer Update Kevin Hardiek gave an update on the Studer

Leadership Program, recapping highlights for 2020
and challenges faced due to COVID. In August,
Huron Studer completed a full PMH ED assessment
to aid in enhancing our ED operations.  In October
2020, My Rounding software was added to the PMH
Leadership toolbox to automate the entire rounding
process with both staff and patients.

None.  Information only. None.

IV.  QUALITY
A.  COVID-19 Update Merry Fuller gave an update on the new COVID

medication Bamlanirimab and the increase in cases
we’re seeing in Benton-Franklin County.

None. None.

B. Legislative and Political
Updates

Commissioner Bestebreur gave an update on the
recent election results for the 15th & 16th Districts
along with an overview of current issues on a
Federal and State level.

None. None.

C.  CEO/Operations Report Craig shared information about the AHA Rural
Health Care Leadership Conference, February 17-18,
2021, which will be held virtually.

Craig reminded the Board to save the date for the
PMH Annual Christmas Lunch on December 17 and
to be sure to wear their ugly sweater to the
December Board Meeting.

The Board members will contact Craig  if
they are interested in registering for this
Conference.

None.

V.  ADJOURN
There being no further business to attend to, Commissioner Sattler adjourned the meeting at 7:21 p.m.



December 16, 2020 Finance Committee

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING
WEDNESDAY – DECEMBER 16, 2020

7:00 a.m. – VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM
AGENDA

MEMBERS: STAFF:
Keith Sattler Craig Marks
Neilan McPartland David Rollins

Stephanie Titus

CALL TO ORDER

I. APPROVE MINUTES
Action Requested – October 28 and November 18, 2020 Minutes

II. FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP
A. Review Financials – November (Attachment X) David

Action Requested – November 2020 Financial Statements

B. Review Accounts Receivable and Cash Goal Stephanie

C. COVID-19 Financial Projection Plan (Attachments Y & Z) David

D. Voucher Lists
Action Requested - Voucher List Payroll and AP Vouchers #154819 through #155295 David
dated 11-12-20 through 12-09-10, in the amount of $11,466,159.34.

E.  Surplus Items Resolution
Action Requested - Surplus Items Property Description: ##0013016; #001225 David

F. Review Draft 2021 Operating and Capital Budgets David

G.  Finance Committee Schedule – 2021 David

III.   ADJOURN

Vision 
Patients 
Employees 
Medical Staff 
Quality 
Services 
Financial 

{‘5 Prosser 
« Memorial Health 

Mission: To improve the health of our community. 

Values 
Accountability 
Service 
Promote Teamwork 
Integrity 
Respect 
Excellence 



October 28, 2020 Finance Committee Minutes

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
WEDNESDAY – October 28, 2020

11:30 a.m. - ORCHARD CONFERENCE ROOM

MEMBERS: STAFF:
Keith Sattler Craig Marks
Brandon Bowden David Rollins

Stephanie Titus

CALL TO ORDER
Keith Sattler called the meeting to order at 11:38 a.m.

I. APPROVE MINUTES
ACTION ITEM
A motion to approve the Finance Committee Meeting minutes for September 23, 2020 as
presented was made by Brandon Bowden.  The Motion was seconded by Keith Sattler and
approved.

II. FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP
A. David reported that the Balance Sheet shows a negative Cash Flow of $607,148 driven by the

payoff of Compunet/Cisco telephone equipment of $478,193.  AR was up $487,807 due to the
reversal of prior month write-offs of old EPIC AR and resumption of bad debt to the collection
agency.  We recognized $1.3M of HHS Funds with new guidance suggesting possible repayment of
most HHS Funds if Net Patient Revenue is the final determinant of forgiveness.  New physicians
and incentive payments to employees are the main drivers of salary expense variance with COVID
reagents, flu vaccine and minor equipment for scopes driving supply variances.
ACTION ITEM
A motion to recommend acceptance of the September Financial Statements as presented to
the PMH Board of Commissioners was made by Brandon Bowden.  The Motion was seconded by
Keith Sattler and approved.

B. Review Accounts Receivable and Cash Goal
Stephanie reviewed accounts receivable and cash receipts of $5,085,435 that were short of the
goal of $5,609,310.  Old EPIC declined to $2,558,949.  Call Center planning is continuing and
Go-Live is early 2021.  Change in early-out business office to MDS is ongoing with completion in
December 2020.

‘23:? (j) P ro s s e r V' 
EmP'Wees Memorial Health service 
Medical Staff Promote Teamwork 
Quality Integrity 
Services Respect 
Financial Mission: To improve the health of our community. Excellence 



October 28, 2020 Finance Committee Minutes

C. COVID-19 Financial Projection Plan (Attachment KK, LL)
Projection relatively unchanged at $12,299,041 if we can keep most COVID Funds.

D. Voucher List #153785 through # 154514 in the amount of $7,060,590.30.)
ACTION ITEM

A motion to recommend approval of the Voucher List #153785 through # 154514 in the amount
of $7,060,590.30 as presented to the PMH Board of Commissioners was made by Brandon
Bowden and seconded Keith Sattler and approved.

E.  Surplus Items Resolution: 4 Mattress Overlays (FBC); #001038 OR Table.
ACTION ITEM
A motion to recommend approval of the Surplus Item Resolutions 4 Mattress Overlays (FBC);
#001038 OR Table as presented to the PMH Board of Commissioners was made by Brandon
Bowden and seconded by Keith Sattler and approved

F. Capital Requests
ACTION ITEM
A motion to recommend approval of the four listed Capital Request items as presented below
was made by Brandon Bowden and seconded by Keith Sattler and approved.
1. Elevator Railing Upgrade for $12,923.40 - approved due to new State regulations.
2. Water Cooled Ice Machine/Water Dispenser for $6,729.12 - approved due to defective unit.
3. Express Chemistry Analyzer for $14,298.82 plus tax and shipping - approved as backup.
4. IV Pumps for $30,066 - approved for purchase due to current units being recalled.

III. ADJOURN
Having declared no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 12:35 p.m.



November 18, 2020 Finance Committee Minutes

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
WEDNESDAY – November 18, 2020

12:00 p.m. - VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM

MEMBERS: STAFF:
Keith Sattler Craig Marks

David Rollins
Stephanie Titus

CALL TO ORDER
Keith Sattler called the meeting to order at 12:15 p.m. There was no action taken due to lack of
quorum.

I. APPROVE MINUTES
ACTION ITEM - October 28, 2020
No action taken due to lack of quorum.

II. FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP
A. David reported that October’s Net Income was $740,261 for October and $5,308,529 year-to-date.

COVID Funds swelled cash by nearly $20.0 million, earmarked $8.2 million to keep, $6.6 million is
to go Back to Medicare in November 2020 and $5.2 million may have to return to HHS.
ACTION ITEM
No action taken due to lack of quorum.

B. Review Accounts Receivable and Cash Goal
AR Days were at 60.35 and cash collections were $5.5 million.

C. COVID-19 Financial Projection Plan (Attachment AA)
We are projecting to keep $8.2 million COVID Funds and 2020 Net Income of $8.4million if PMH
Can recognize $6.35 of SBA PPP Funds in 2020.

D. Voucher List #154515 through #154818 dated 10-23-20 through 11-11-20, in the amount of
$3.908.405.
ACTION ITEM
No action taken due to lack of quorum.

Vision 
Patients 
Employees 
Medical Staff 
Quality 
Services 
Financial 

(3) Prosser 
Memoria l  Heal th 

Mission: To improve the health of our community. 

Values 
Accountability 
Service 
Promote Teamwork 
Integrity 
Respect 
Excellence 

_Q§\ 



November 18, 2020 Finance Committee Minutes

E. Review Draft 2021 Operating and Capital Budgets
Initial draft has $4.7 million Net Income with 6.46% margin and $1.93 million capital budget.

III. ADJOURN
Having declared no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 1:05 p.m.



MEMORANDUM

TO: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH

FROM: CRAIG J. MARKS, CEO

DATE: DECEMBER 2020

RE: CEO REPORT

______________________________________________________________________________

SERVICES

1.  2020 PMH Strategic Plan
While much work and activity are taking place on our replacement facility project, we

cannot lose sight of the fact that the opening of a new facility is at least three years away if
everything goes according to our plan.  In the meantime, we must stay focused on our Pillar
Goals and the objectives and the strategies that will enable us to achieve them.  That is exactly
what our 2021 Strategic Plan (Attachment A) does for us.  This Plan was developed by
reviewing our 2020 Strategic Plan and incorporating items that we have not yet achieved.  We
also asked each PMH department to submit their collective ideas about what should be
included in the Plan.  This is a little different from how we have done it in previous years, but I
believe the outcome is similar.

As in previous years, the input we received was very good and made it challenging to
determine what to include in our Plan, especially as we are working to streamline and make it
shorter.  Last month we shared an early draft of the 2021 Strategic Plan and made changes
based on the feedback we received.  As a reminder, we did not review our Mission, Vision ,
Values and Standards of Behavior this year, as they are typically reviewed every 3 to 5 years.
Our current Mission, Vision, Values and Standards of Behavior were created/revised in the fall
of 2016 and will be reviewed again next year, during the 2022 Strategic Planning Process.

This Strategic Plan will be a challenge to accomplish with many initiatives to pursue and
accomplish ranging from our continued recruitment of additional providers to the development
of a replacement facility.  Most of our initiatives focus on and promote our continued growth
and our commitment to become the best hospital we can be.  It is important to note that this
Plan keeps us focused on our Six Pillars of Excellence, the keys to our long-term success.  The
initiatives in the Plan are both short-term (e.g. provider recruitment) and long-term (e.g. the
development of a replacement facility) and will enable us to be successful in both the short and
long term.  The Board will be asked to approve the proposed 2021 Prosser Memorial Health
Strategic Plan at the December Board Meeting.



2.  2021 PMH Marketing Plan
Shannon Hitchcock, Chief Communications Officer, has been busy developing significant

marketing/communication strategies that tell the Prosser Memorial Health story of the
communities we serve and there is more to come.  She has developed a proposed 2021 PMH
Marketing Plan (Attachment B) which is a comprehensive overview of how we plan to continue
telling our story through direct mail, social media, newspaper, billboards, radio, television, town
halls, etc.  The Plan emphasizes our providers, staff and the caring approach they provide to
every patient; the new and advanced services provided at PMH; and how we will provide
ongoing communication about all the wonderful things happening throughout Prosser
Memorial Health.  The Board received a draft 2021 PMH Marketing Plan last month and will be
asked to approve it in December.

3. 2021 PMH Information Technology (IT) Plan
Kevin Hardiek, Chief Information Officer, and his staff have updated the 2021 IT plan based

on input received throughout the year and during the planning process.  It is also based on
initiatives (e.g. new services and/or technology) included in the 2021 PMH Strategic Plan that
have IT implications.  The proposed 2021 PMH IT Plan (Attachment C) assesses our
infrastructure (hardware and software) needs and our IT programmatic opportunities.  Several
key initiatives included in the IT Plan include: the integration of our new patient monitors
throughout the hospital with EPIC; the replacement of Lawson as our human resources/payroll
software platform; the acquisition and installation of virtual desktop infrastructure; and the
continued focus on cyber security to protect our system and data from outside attacks.  These
are all initiatives that will enhance the performance of our IT systems and enhance staff
engagement/satisfaction with our systems.  The Board will be asked to approve the 2021 PMH
IT Plan at the December Board Meeting.

4.  Replacement Facility Update
Work continues at a brisk pace on our Replacement Facility Project covering many different

areas ranging from the design of the facility to financing it.  One area, led by our Owner’s
Representatives during our Strategic Planning Process, that everyone on our team (staff, Board,
Medical Staff) had an opportunity to participate in the development of a Vision for our new
facility (Attachment D) and a Plan to monitor our progress on the Vision (Attachment E).  These
documents were created from the almost five hundred suggestions we received from team
members.  This Vision and Plan will be monitored and reported on throughout the Replacement
Facility Project and will help us ensure we build what is important to us and those we serve.
The Board will be asked to approve this Vision and Plan at the December Board Meeting.

Another significant area that our Owner’s Representatives (NV5) have been assisting us with
was our preparation to go before the Washington Capital Project Advisory Review Board
(CPARB) on December 3rd, to seek approval to utilize the GC/CM (General
Contractor/Construction Manager) construction contracting method.  This is the most common
construction contracting method used on complex construction projects such as hospital
replacements because it allows the GC/CM to get involved in the design of the project in effort
to lower the cost of construction by making it easier to build and with lower cost materials.  In



the State of Washington, public entities like PMH are not allowed by law to use the GC/CM
method without the approval of CPARB.  Our presentation to CPARB went as planned and was
well received.  However, CPARB voted 6 to 2 to not approve us because they did not believe we
had enough direct Washington State experience on our team using the GC/CM Method in
Washington (Attachment E1).  They discounted our legal counsel from Washington (Andrew
Greene – Perkins Coie) and the experience our entire team (CEO, CFO, Architects, Owner’s
Representatives) has using the GC/CM method in other states.  They encouraged us to add
additional Washington depth to our team and reapply.  All members of CPARB stated that
GC/CM was the appropriate construction method to use for our project.  While we are
disappointed in their decision, we plan to add a GC/CM Advisor from Washington to our team
and reapply by December 21st and go before CPARB again on January 28th.  We could appeal the
decision which we believe we would win for several reasons, but it will be more timely to just
reapply.  This action has forced us to cancel the GC/CM Task Force Meetings scheduled for
December and January, and they will be rescheduled for February.  This will also delay the
Board selecting a GC/CM from January to February.  We will discuss this in more detail with the
Board at the December Board Work Session.

Projects of this magnitude often run into bumps in the road that must be dealt with.  This is
just our first, but we are prepared to address it and move on.  One of the key roles of our
Owner’s Representatives is to create a schedule and assist all parties in adhering to it.  I have
attached our schedule for the next several months (Attachment F), but our complete schedule
takes us all the way through construction, with much greater detail.  Several other areas that
our Owner’s Representatives are working on include: working with R&B/Mitchell Planning to
conduct a full audit of PMH’s existing medical equipment and developing a full medical
equipment project cost estimate based upon existing, leased and new equipment planned to be
purchased for the new facility; select a geotechnical engineer and coordinate site clearing
(remove the Russian Olive Trees) at the building location only at this time; continue to work
with the Washington Department of Health to determine whether or not we need a Certificate
of Need (CON) for this project; coordinate with all the local and state agencies that have
oversite on this project; assist in the selection of additional contractors for the project (e.g.
furniture, fixtures and equipment (FF&E); security consultant; assist in the assessment of
whether to utilize natural gas or electricity at out new site; and the development of a
comprehensive budget for the project.

One of the most intriguing issues we are currently dealing with is whether we should plan for
the use of natural gas or electricity on our new campus.  Some of the facts we have been able
to obtain include: while natural gas is not currently available on our site, Cascade Natural Gas is
willing to run a natural gas line to our property for approximately $300,000; the natural gas line
would be large enough to support our campus and some additional development north of the
interstate; there would be an initial savings of approximately $100,000 for a reduction in the
size of the electrical equipment needed for the project, if natural gas is utilized for the project;
the net initial cost of using natural gas for the new facility is approximately $200,000 and based
on current natural gas and electric rates, would have a payback period between 12 and 15
years; the current political climate in Washington (Attachment G) and along the West Coast



(Attachment H) is against the future use of fossil fuels; and our engineers are comfortable
making either an all-electric or natural gas facility which will meet our long-term needs.  We
plan to discuss this with the Board at the December Board Work Session.

We will also discuss at the December Board Work Session the schematic design for our new
facility (Attachment I).  Our design team led by Kurt Broeckelmann has been working with
members of our team, bringing our hopes and dreams to life on paper, which is what
schematic design is all about (Attachment J).   Kurt and his team will review the schematic
design with the Board and seek their approval at the December Board Meeting.  They will then
move on to Design Development, the next step in the design process where the primary goal is
to create a detailed design that includes the types of materials that will be used on the project,
what the interior and exterior of the space will look like and what kind of equipment, systems
and furnishings will be used in the building.  To ensure that the facility we have designed to
date is within our budget as developed in 2017, Kurt submitted the schematic design
documents to a cost estimator.  The cost estimator determined that the cost to construct our
current project is $46,785 million compared to our estimate of $40.5 million in 2017.  The
variance is primarily due to scope creep and inflation according to Kurt (Attachment L). While
we are concerned about the cost, we still have a long way to go before we begin to make
changes based on cost.  At this point, there are too many guesses in the project, thus we are
not publishing a total project budget until we have answers to more of the unknown.  By the
time we complete design development (end of February), we will have a much more reliable
total project cost that will be shared with the Board.  The final area that we continue to work on
is the USDA application.  Gary Hicks, our financial consultant , is leading this effort and meeting
with us on a regular basis.  Our efforts in this area will increase dramatically after the first of the
year through the end of March when we plan to submit our application.

5.  Nuclear Medicine Update
As I mentioned previously, we sometimes hit a bump in the road and that has also happened

with our nuclear medicine project.  We were recently notified by one of our contractors that a
booster fan and exhaust fan for our air conditioning unit in nuclear medicine are on backorder
due to COVID-19 and the holidays and will not be available until mid-January (Attachment M).
This will delay the opening of the department until February.  On a positive note, we have hired
Amber Guthrie to be our full-time nuclear medicine technologist.  Amber has been working in
the Tri-Cities and is excited to help get our department started and grow in the future.  Other
good news is that our radioactive materials license was approved by the Washington DOH and
our nuclear medicine equipment will be installed in December.  We are excited to offer this
new service to our community and can’t wait until February!

6.  Prosser Clinic Remodel
The Prosser Clinic remodel project (building out the pharmacy space for exam rooms and a

radiology suite) was declared substantially complete by the contractor (Total Site Services, LLC)
on November 27, 2019.  This means that we can take occupancy of the space, but that a punch
list of work was yet to be completed.  The contractor is then required to complete the punch
list and provide the owner (PMH) a number for documents including:  O & M manuals with



warranties; as-built drawings and specifications; lien waivers; and several AIA documents
(affidavit of payment of debts and claims; affidavit of release of liens; and consent of surety to
final payment).  Once these items are received, PMH issues a Notice of Completion (NOC) form
to several state agencies including the Department of Revenue; Labor and Industries; and
employment Security.  Once we receive release of lien notices from these agencies, we can
release retained funds for the project.  We did not receive the required documentation from
Total Site Services, LLC until August 2020, probably because of the pandemic.  We received the
final release of lien letter from the Department of Labor & Industries on November 30, 2020.
Therefore, we will be asking the Board to declare the Chardonnay Clinic Remodel Project
complete and release all retained funds to Total Site Services, LLC at the December Board
Meeting (Attachment N).

7.  Hospital Commitment
The Washington State Hospital Association (WSHA) recently held a conference call with all

hospital CEOs in the State.  The purpose  of the call was to bring hospital leaders together in
how we are going to deal with a surge in COVID-19 cases.  WSHA’s concern was that if we did
not agree to something like this, the Governor would step in and set the rules, which possibly
would not be in our best interest.  As a result, a commitment was made by each hospital CEO to
work together to address surges in COVID-19 patients (Attachment O).  Since we agreed to this
commitment I have had discussions with representatives from both Kadlec (staff) and Trios
(CEO) about how we can better work together on transfers.  Both organizations are very
interested in working with us, and I have a follow-up call with representatives from Kadlec,
including their CEO later this week.  All three organizations are very interested in doing what is
best and right for our patients.

MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT

1.  2021 Medical Staff Model and Provider Recruitment/Retention Plan
As part of the Strategic Planning Process, a considerable amount of time was spent

discussing the Medical Staff Development Pillar and specifically, the provider needs of the
communities we serve.  Based on the need analysis contained in the 2021 Strategic Planning
Packet (not a perfect system, but one used across the country), we continue to have needs in
primary care and specialty (secondary) care.  These shortages force residents to seek care
elsewhere, which helps explain our historically low market share.  In Attachment P you will find
our proposed 2021 Medical Staff Model and Provider Recruitment/Succession Plan which was
approved by the PMH Medical Staff and is being recommended to the Board for approval in
December.  The Plan is equal in primary care (IM/FP, FP/Ped, PA/NP) goals and specialty care
(Dermatology, GI, Mental Health) goals, and will be challenging to accomplish with the nation-
wide provider shortage.



2.  Medical Staff Recruitment
As we near the end of 2020, I am pleased to report that we had a very good recruitment

year.  We were fortunate to add Dr. Tom Tieu (Urology), Dr. Coral Tieu (ENT), Dr. Shem Rode
(Emergency Medicine), Bailey Padilla (VNM), Becky Morris (CRNM) and Afton Dunham (Nurse
Practitioner) to the PMH Team.  These are all outstanding providers that have and will continue
to have a positive impact on our community and organization for years to come.  Our Team
continues to grow and get stronger every year.  Our current recruitment areas of focus as we
end 2020 and enter 2021 are dermatology, GI and primary care for Benton City.  We are
currently in discussions with Dr. Nicola Nylander, dermatologist, about joining us.  I am meeting
with Dr. Nylander next week to discuss a proposed contract, and to also discuss acquisition of
equipment (lasers, etc.) she owns and to assess the clinic space we are proposing for her clinic
(current Benton City Pain Clinic Space, the Pain Clinic would move to the Specialty Clinic in
Prosser).  We hope to reach an agreement on this topic and have her join us this spring.  We
interviewed our first primary care provider candidate for our opportunity in Benton City, but
did not believe it was a good fit for this candidate.  We hope to interview additional candidates
soon.  We have yet to interview a GI candidate but have signed a contract with Cejka Search to
assist us with this important search.

3.  Dr. Yung Huang
We recently learned that Dr. Yung Huang, general surgeon, will be leaving PMH in February

to pursue new opportunities.  Please join me in thanking Dr. Huang for his service to our
patients and PMH and wish him well in his new adventures!  Dr. Richard Unger, general
surgeon, will be joining the PMH Team in January.  In addition, we are currently talking to
several general surgeons in the Tri-Cities about the possibility of taking call at PMH.  Dr. Unger
has indicated that he expects to take a great deal of call, but when he’s on vacation or off for a
day or two, we plan to utilize Dr. Elerding and possibly general surgeons from the Tri-Cities for
coverage.

4.  Medical Staff Rules and Regulations
The Medical Staff have been working for several months on updating their Board

Certification requirements in their Rules and Regulations (Attachment HH).  The Medical Staff
has now reviewed and approved these changes and will ask the Board to approve the changes
in December.

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT
1.  Employee Engagement

Despite the COVID-19 pandemic, we are still going to fill the month of December with
holiday festivities (Attachment Q).  While we are not able to have our Annual Holiday Party
Extravaganza this year, Thursday December 17th will be our day of celebration.  Starting early
that morning, just like Santa, special gifts will be distributed to all our staff.  In addition, we will
be holding a department Christmas Tree Decorating contest and our annual ugly Christmas
sweater contest.  Finally, we will be serving our annual holiday dinner today and night shift
staff, complete with prime rib, mashed potatoes, veggies and peppermint stick ice cream.



While this year is unlike any previous year, let’s make the most of it and enjoy the activities and
have a wonderful holiday season!  I don’t know about you, but I can’t wait to turn the page on
2020!

2.  Employee/Medical Staff Engagement Surveys
The engagement survey process for both our staff (November 13) and Medical Staff

(November 20) ended in November.  This process is conducted once per year and enables us an
opportunity to anonymously hear from our staff and Medical Staff about how well we, as an
organization, are engaging with our team.  This process will identify areas of change from
previous years (because we use the same survey instrument), areas where we are performing
well and opportunities for improvement.  We will use this information to develop strategies to
enhance our performance at the department level and throughout the organization.  At this
point, we only have high level information from People Element, such as participation levels.
Our staff participation was 86.0% compared to 74.5% in 2019.  Our Medical Staff participation
level was 75.0% compared to 75.0% in 2019.  These are good participation levels (that is the
highest staff participation level we have ever had!) and will give us an accurate view of the
engagement levels of our team.  We anticipate detailed reports to be available in January,
which will be shared with everyone and used to develop our improvement plans.

3.  ASPIRE Program
One of the highlights of our Annual Holiday Parties in the past was the recognition of all

recipients of ASPIRE Awards throughout the year (Attachment R) and the random selection of
twelve of those individuals to receive checks ranging from $250 to $1000. These individuals
were and are being recognized for living our ASPIRE Values.  They are being recognized for
doing things for their patients, co-workers, visitors, providers, etc. that go above and beyond
the duties in their job descriptions.  Four Bronze Medal recipients will receive checks for $250;
four Silver Medal recipients will receive checks for $500; and four Gold Medal recipients will
receive checks for $1,000.  This year, due to the pandemic, the random drawing will be held in
the Vineyard Conference Room at 2:00 p.m. December 17th, immediately following the Holiday
Luncheon.  The checks will be delivered to the lucky individuals shortly thereafter.  Please join
me in thanking each of these individuals for their efforts to exceed the expectations of others
and truly make PMH great!

4.  AFSCME (American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees) Negotiations
On December 4th, the PMH bargaining team (Bryon Dirkes, Merry Fuller, David Rollins, Rocky

Snider, Stephanie Titus and Kirk Ehlis, legal counsel) held the first negotiation session with the
ASFSCME bargaining team to renegotiate the current contract which is set to expire on
December 30, 2020.  Several bargaining sessions are scheduled for the coming days, with a goal
of reaching a tentative agreement (TA) by December 9th. If a TA is reached and the AFSCME
Union members ratify the contract before December 17th, we will bring the contract to the
Board for approval in December.  If not, the provisions in the current contract will remain in
effect until the Board can approve the contract in 2021.



FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP

1.  Financial Performance – November
2020 has been an upside-down year for many reasons, but primarily because of the

pandemic.  This has also caused financial ups and downs for us and hospitals across the
country.  Just when I thought we were getting back to normal from a financial perspective, we
experienced November (Attachment S).  November is the first month since the pandemic
started that our actual gross revenue exceeded our budget.  Our gross revenue was 1% better
than expected, which is usually a good sign for financial success.  That was not the case for us.
Our deductions from revenue were $375,270 (5%) over budget; working with our auditor we
determined that we will probably not get to keep $3,369,462 of HHS Covid relief funds that we
previously recognized; and to complete the perfect storm, our expenses were $466,606 (9%)
over budget. These items combined to give us a loss from operations for November of
($3,781,056).  After adding in non-operating income, our net income (bottom line) for
November was a loss of ($3,737,408).  Most of this loss can be attributed to one-time
occurrences, but it demonstrates that we must stay very diligent in our collection practices and
expense management.

The November results obviously had a very negative impact on our year-to-date
performance.  It is interesting to note that while our gross and net revenue are behind budget,
they now exceed last year which is why we will have to return most of our HHS funding.
Fortunately, our expenses are in line with our budget. The bottom-line result is that our net
income for the year is $1,571,120, compared to our budget of $4,077,839.  This variance will be
made up by the SBA PPP relief funds ($6.35 million), but we will not be able to recognize those
funds until next year.  Thus, our financial performance is similar to last year, however, we have
$6.35 million we are waiting to record in early 2021.  Our payor mix remains strong and our
cash flow remains positive even though over $5 million dollars will be returned to HHS in the
near future. While November did not end up being the positive financial month we thought it
would be, our overall financial position remains strong.

2.  Proposed 2021 Operating and Capital Budgets
After several months of working with our Leadership Team, the finance staff have

developed a proposed 2021 Operating and Capital Budget (Attachment T) which the Board will
be asked to approve at the December meeting.  The budgets are based on input from our staff,
Leadership Team, Medical Staff and the proposed 2021 Strategic Plan.  The Budget Packet goes
into detail about what is contained in the budgets, so I will only write about a couple of key
points. First, we continue in our rapid growth mode as a result of our successful provider
recruitment and service expansion.  This is especially true when we compare our budget to
2020, which was negatively impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic.  As a result, our Operating
Budget is projecting a net income (bottom line) of $4,357,703 (6.03% total margin) plus
$6,350,235 of SPA-PPP relief funds for a total of $10,707,938 and a total margin of 13.47%.  We
had hoped to recognize the PPP relief funds in 2020, however because we are a public  entity
and the payback of the funds will not be forgiven until 2021, our auditors will not allow us to
record them in 2020 even though that’s when the funds were earned.  This performance



exceeds our Pillar Financial Stewardship goal and will enable us to continue our journey
towards a new facility.  Our proposed Capital Budget includes $1,800,052 of acquisitions, of
which $1,216,866 will be immediate outlays of cash, while the remaining $440,877 will be
leases with payments over the life of the leases.  As a result of our projected operations and
capital spending, and the possible return of $5.2 million in HHS Funds, we are only projecting  a
positive cash flow of $91,755 which will enable us to continue building up our cash reserves as
we continue to plan for a new facility.

3. PMH Foundation Update
Convergent Non-Profit Solutions will present their final report and recommendations for

Phase 1 of the capital campaign feasibility study for the new hospital to the Foundation Board
in December. Based on the 66 interviews they conducted over a three-week period they are
recommending we set a campaign goal between $2-2.5 million. There are three different
options if we’re interested in partnering with them on Phase 2 of the campaign, when we begin
asking for donations. Shannon and the Foundation Board will do a cost analysis based on our
goal and Convergent’s fee structure to determine how much support we will need during this
phase.

The annual Gingerbread House Build event has morphed into an online fundraising
opportunity where the public can purchase different themed gingerbread house kits and pair it
with wine, beer, cider and non-alcoholic drinks that will be wrapped up in a festive holiday tote
for pick up or delivery this Friday. If you are interested in purchasing a kit and/or making a
donation to the Foundation visit the website at: https://www.prosserhealth.foundation/ and
click Shop in the lower right corner. Gingerbread kits can also be purchased in the gift shop
through Christmas Eve.

The Gift Shop has partnered with French Vanilla Market in Sunnyside to provide purchasing,
staging and stocking assistance. Sales have been very strong since making the change!

The Foundation will not be sending an end of the year letter out this year, soliciting
donations, as the cost of printing and mailing the letter was a breakeven proposition for the
Foundation last year. If you would like to make an end of the year donation you can contact
Shannon Hitchcock directly at 509-786-6601 or make a secure, online donation on the
foundation’s website.

QUALITY
1.  The COVID-19 pandemic continues to be just like the bad penny we can never get rid of.  The
number of positive COVID-19 cases is going up across the country, including our area.  While
the number of positive cases is going up, we are fortunate that the number of hospitalized
patients with COVID-19 have remained flat.  Between 15% and 20% of all hospitalized patients
in Benton and Franklin Counties have COVID-19.  Hospitals in our area are actually seeing a
significant increase in other very sick patients.  This increase may be due to individuals not
seeking care earlier because of the pandemic and fear that they would contract COVID-19 in a

https://nam02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.prosserhealth.foundation%2F&data=04%7C01%7Ccallen%40prosserhealth.org%7C1ff9ace064a444419f7a08d89ba6ed59%7C91672f153bfe49a488f8079c90575811%7C0%7C0%7C637430488563224402%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=%2Bn2OcP7y0mnEUN3i3YXkJRBWnoNUlzXTaPmTj7YQ7vw%3D&reserved=0


doctor’s office or the hospital.  Also, we are fortunate that area deaths have not significantly
increased.  This may be because of our enhanced therapeutic treatments (Remdesivir,
Bamlanivimab, etc.) that patients are now being treated with.  The largest development on the
horizon will be the release by the FDA of two COVID-19 vaccines, which is expected any day.
We are currently working with the Washington Department of Health (DOH) regarding their
COVID-19 Vaccination Plan.  We anticipate that PMH and our Clinics will be administration sites.
We will prioritize vaccinations based on guidelines being finalized by the CDC and DOH.  Based
on everything I have read, our staff and providers will be among the highest priority to receive
the vaccine.  Let’s hope that these vaccines help us get this horrible pandemic under control.
In the meantime, Governor Inslee recently released a new proclamation regarding restrictions
on non-urgent medical procedures (Attachment V).  Fortunately, WSHA worked with the
Governor’s Office in drafting the proclamation, making it much more palatable to hospitals
across the state (Attachment W).  Fortunately, PMH is in good shape as it relates to PPE,
available beds, etc. so we will not be impacted by this proclamation at this time.  While we are
all experiencing COVID-19 fatigue, we continually remind our staff, visitors, providers, etc. to
wear a mask, wash their hands frequently and socially distance.

2.  COVID-19 Financial Plan
Hospitals across the country have figured out over the past nine months of the pandemic

how to deal with most of the challenges of COVID-19 such as testing, therapeutics, prevention,
etc.  The one thing PMH and all hospitals continue to struggle with, however, are the rules
surrounding COVID relief funds and whether or not we will get to keep them and how to
account for them.  The reason for this is that the rules are constantly changing.  The American
Hospital Association (AHA) is so frustrated that they recently sent a letter to Alex Azar, the head
of HHS, to express our collective frustrations and concerns (Attachment X).  These changes to
the rules could have a very negative impact on the financials of PMH and hospitals across the
country.  While there is a lot of talk about additional COVID relief packages, at this point in
time, we have received $19.9 million in relief funds (Attachment Y).  Of those funds we have
already returned $6.35 million (Medicare Advance Payments) and anticipate returning an
additional $5,202,730 of HHS funds.  While these are all guesses, we are now projecting that we
will use $1,745,993 of COVID relief funds in 2020, resulting in a net income (bottom line) of
$1,633.463 by year end 2020 (Attachment Z).  This is a $3,369,462 negative adjustment due to
our and our auditor’s current understanding of the COVID relief fund requirements.

3.  Board Policies
The Board will be asked to approve the following Board Policies in December:  Board

Evaluation (Attachment AA); Confidentiality (Attachment BB); Designation of Privacy Officers
(Attachment CC); and Licensure and Accreditation Requirements (Attachment DD).  The only
changes being recommended by Administrations to these policies are title changes, typos, etc.
thus the policies will be placed on the Consent Agenda.  If the Board would like to make
changes and/or discuss the proposed policies, any Commissioner may remove the policy from
the Consent Agenda and place it on the Regular Agenda.



4.  2020 Environment of Care (EOC) Report and 2021 EOC Plan
The 2020 EOC Report and Plan for 2021 was developed by Steve Broussard, Director of

Support Services, for Board review and approval in December (Attachment EE).  If there is time,
the Report and Plan will be reviewed at the Board Work Session; if not, it will be reviewed at
the Board Meeting.  This comprehensive report covers several EOC areas that are integral to
our ongoing operation but are not always front of mind for our staff.  Steve does no excellent
job of reminding everyone how important these areas are, and that you will never know when
they may come into play.  As a result, we are able to provide a safe environment for our
patients, visitors and staff.  A big pat on the back goes out to Steve for all his work in this area.
Thank you Steve!

5.  Washington Poison Center
For many years Prosser Memorial Health has supported the Washington Poison Center and

their mission to prevent harm from poisoning.  The Washington Poison Center assists us in
dealing with local poisonings for a small fee of $1,000 per year (Attachment FF).  In fact, in
2020, the Washington Poison Center assisted PMH 59 times in managing poisoned patients.
The most common exposures at PMH were acetaminophen; miscellaneous sedative,
hypnotics/antipsychotics; and selective serotonin receptor inhibitors (SSRI).  The Poison Center
does an excellent job assisting our providers to ensure that we provide the best care possible to
our patients.  We are very thankful for the Washington Poison Center and the needed services
they provide.

6.  Board Self-Evaluation
A final reminder that it is time for all Board members to complete their annual self-

evaluation, which was distributed last month.  Please complete the evaluation and return it to
Carol by the first week of January so that the results can be compiled and discussed in January.
We plan to review the results in January and use the findings to develop a 2021 Board Action
Plan.

7.  Board Education
Although the American Hospital Association is not conducting the Annual AHA Rural

Healthcare Leadership Conference on February 17th-18 th in Arizona this year, they are
conducting it virtually (Attachment GG).  Once again, the conference addresses many issues
rural hospitals are facing today and includes many top healthcare speakers.  I encourage all
Board members to participate, and if you are interested please contact Carol to get signed up.

8.  December Board Work/Regular Sessions
The December Board Work Session will primarily be used to update the Board on the

Replacement Facility Project.  Specifically, we will be reviewing the New Facility Vision and Plan;
Schematic Design; the use of natural gas vs. electricity; and the CPARB PRC update.  Time
permitting, we will also review the 2020 Environment of Care (EOC) Report and the 2021 EOC
Plan.  At the December Board Meeting, the Board will be asked to act on several Board Policies;
an update to the Medical Staff Rules and Regulations; the 2021 Medicals Staff Model and
Provider Recruitment/Succession Plan; 2021 Operating and Capital Budget; ;2021 Strategic



Plan; 2021 Marketing Plan; 2021 IT Plan; PMH Replacement Facility Vision and Plan; PMH
Replacement Facility Design Development; and the 2021 EOC Plan.  There are a lot of action
items, but hopefully most of the Board’s questions regarding these items will be discussed and
answered at the Board Work Session.

May you and your family have a Merry Christmas and a wonderful New Year!

If you have any questions regarding this report, or other Hospital activities, please contact me
at (269) 214-8185 (cell), (509) 786-6695 (office), or stop by and see me at the Hospital.



Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT A























Carol Allen
Typewriter
 

Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT B



2This is how we care.

Marketing & Community Relations Plan 2021

Executive Summary:

The year of the pandemic has changed consumer behaviors and the way in which they
receive and react to information. We have been analyzing and tracking trends in what
outreach is working and what avenues that have worked in the past no longer make
sense in our current environment. This year has also given Prosser Memorial Health
the opportunity to be a trusted leader in healthcare. Throughout the pandemic we have
been responsive to the needs in our community by opening a COVID-19 Clinic,
educating people on the virus and how to stay safe and communicate to them that it is
safe to come to our clinics and hospital when you need medical care.

The 2021 Marketing and Community Relations Plan builds on the trust and commitment
we have demonstrated in caring for our community and delivering high quality
healthcare with respect, optimism and hope. The messaging, images and outreach in
this plan will capitalize on the last three years since the rebranding took place with the
new logo and tagline of This Is How We Care. It has gained traction in the community
and consumers are beginning to recognize our brand and associate it with high quality
care close to home.

In addition, the plan will include the communication strategy for the new hospital project.
We have learned a lot about how the community feels about Prosser Memorial Health
and our desire to build a new facility from phase one of the Foundation’s feasibility
study. We will use this insight to develop the talking points and communication strategy
to educate the communities we serve about our plans.

Healthcare in general has been chaotic this year and, in our region, even more so. We
have seen the collapse of the Astria healthcare system in Yakima and the lower Yakima
Valley and the separation of Virginia Mason with Memorial Hospital in Yakima leaving
patients without quality care in some cases and extremely long wait times. As Prosser
Memorial Health continues to grow and expand we will educate the communities we
serve on our accessibility, our expertise and our philosophy of care and compassion
that sets our organization apart from any other healthcare organization in our region.



3This is how we care.

Primary & Secondary Service Area:
The hospital’s service area includes the communities of Prosser, Mabton, Sunnyside,
Benton City and Grandview in the heart of South-Central Washington’s wine country.
The obesity rate is considerably higher than the state average in this area, and not
surprisingly, so is the rate of diabetes.

Continued growth in the primary service area is expected in the next three years with
the largest increases seen among residents 65 years and older. Our secondary
service area continues to expand into the Yakima area with the Astria Health clinics
closing, the hospital closing and re-structure at Yakima Valley Memorial Hospital.



4This is how we care.

Who is the competition?
Prosser Memorial Health’s major competitors are Astria Sunnyside Hospital and Astria
Health Centers located in Sunnyside and Grandview. While Kadlec Medical Center and
Clinics and Trios Medical Center are considered competition with primary care and
some specialty service lines we do have strong partnerships with these facilities and
transfer our patients to them when a higher level of care is needed.

In 2021, our strategy is to continue to take market-share away from the Astria Health
system as it struggles with financial challenges and plummeting patient satisfaction.
We will continue to market aggressively in the Yakima area with our Joint
Replacement program, Orthopedics, Urology, ENT / Allergy and Women’s Health
where demands are significantly outpacing supply.

Opportunity:

Prosser Memorial Health has built a solid reputation of providing high quality healthcare
with compassion. Our patient satisfaction numbers are strong and our patient
testimonials and social media engagement from the community is a marketing
professional’s dream. Looking forward to 2021, there are numerous opportunities to
grow market-share:

1. Primary Care Footprint
Our primary care network continues to grow as consumers learn about the
clinics, providers and services offered. We continue to expand services
(diabetic education and dermatology) to respond to the needs in the
marketplace. Our primary care provider base covers everything from
women’s health issues, mental health, occupational health and primary care.
Our clinics accept walk-ins, next day appointments and will take all
insurances. They are conveniently located in our primary service area. The
provider group as a whole is engaged in Prosser Memorial Health, the
community and their patients.

2. Building Our Specialty Care and Surgical Group
While 2020 took some of the wind out of our sails with surgical services,
volumes are coming back. Volumes for our two newest providers in
ENT/Allergy and Urology have demonstrated to us that there is a need in our
region AND patients are willing to travel to have access to board certified
specialists.

3. Living our Mission Through our Philosophy of Care: We Are
Experts in Caring.
Our mission, to improve the health of our community, is practiced with
every patient encounter. Weare committed to providing high quality
healthcare, at a low cost, forevery member of our community and treating
them as if they are a part of our family. Our providers are experts in their
field and they are also experts in care and compassion.



5This is how we care.

4. Service Line Excellence
We have expanded our provider base and our services lines to be able to
diagnose and treat a majority of ailments in our community. Through
community education, in a socially distanced manner, we will continue to
increase awareness around the services lines Prosser Memorial Health
offers.

Hospital Services
 Emergency Care Center
 ER wait times
 Ouch-less Pediatric ER
 PMH Family Birthplace:  Full service, C-Sections, Pain Management–Epidurals,
 Four Labor, Delivery, Recovery, Postpartum (LDRP) Suites
 PMH Surgery Center
 Same Day and Inpatient Surgery
 Inpatient Acute Care
 Adult Hospital Medicine Admissions
 Pediatric Hospital Medicine Admissions
 Diagnostic Imaging
 Self-Referrals
 3D HD Mammography
 Dexa
 Provider Referrals
 MRI
 CT
 Cardio - adult and pediatric
 Transitional Care Services
 Therapy
 Outpatient Special Procedures
 Pick line placement
 IV Therapy
 Wound Care
 ECHO
 Nuclear Medicine
 Community Paramedic Program
 In-home discharge follow-up (case management)



6This is how we care.

Clinical Services:
 PMH Surgical Group (Orthopedics, Podiatric, General, ENT, Urology, General

Surgery)
 Joint Replacement Program
 Obstetrics
 Geriatric Medicine
 Pediatric
 Mental Health
 Women’s Health
 Gynecological Surgery Services
 PMH Family Medicine providers
 PMH Occupational Health
 Employer contracted services
 Family Medicine
 Clinic Visits- After hours and weekend availability
 Extended Hours
 Referrals to Medical Center Services
 Comprehensive Pain Clinic: Referrals
 PMH Therapy Services

5. Expanded Hours of Service:
We will continue to expand our hours of operations at the clinic and the
hospital to accommodate patients who need to be seen outside of the typical
8 am – 5 pm model. We are already doing this with great success with
weekend and evening hours at the clinics, mammograms and CT Scans.

6. Growth
Our 2021 marketing plan will include a large focus on growing our clinic
volumes and outpatient service lines. We will also focus on our advanced
technology capabilities with the Mako Robot System and our 3D HD
mammography equipment.

Prosser Memorial Health has fantastic opportunities to take away market-
share from the competition and expand not only our specialty care service
line but the secondary outpatient services that support those specialties.

7. The New Hospital Project:
Our 2021 marketing plan will include a comprehensive communication plan
for formally introducing our plan to build a new hospital for the communities
we serve. We will be active in our community raising money and awareness
for this project.



7This is how we care.

Community Outreach:
We believe in the power of community. There is no greater responsibility, or privilege,
than taking care of our friends, family and neighbors. This Is How We Care has been
our tagline for the past three years. Our messaging in 2021 will build on the brand
power of this tagline and incorporate the care philosophy of our providers and hospital
staff. We want patients to choose Prosser Memorial Health because our providers are
the best in their field, our technology is state-of-the-art and because we truly care
about our patients and their families.

Brand Position & Personality
Prosser Memorial Health has gained the trust in our primary service area as the
preferred community hospital as well as steadily increased volumes at the clinics. Who
we are and how we deliver care to our community will continue to be the main message
in our marketing and community outreach. It’s what sets us apart from our competition.

Goals and Objectives
Our overall communications strategy supports the organizations overall objectives and
priorities. These include:

1. Achieve a patient satisfaction rate of 95% or higher;
2. Achieve an annual Medical Staff satisfaction rate of 90% or higher;
3. Achieve and maintain an annual employee satisfaction rating of 90% or

higher;
4. Achieve and maintain selected quality attribute scores that will place the

hospital in the top 10 percent of Critical Access Hospitals;
5. Increase adjusted patient days for those services we provide; and
6. Achieve an annual total margin of 4.6% or more.



8This is how we care.

Target Audience
1. Consumers

a. Women in our primary service area make 75% of all healthcare decisions
for their family. From the Nursery to the Emergency Department and
everywhere in between. We will place additional emphasis on working
moms who need appointments for themselves and their families outside
of the 8 am – 5pm window.

b. New patients in our secondary service area.
c. Existing patients and their families can tell our story the best. Retaining

their business and having them share their experience with others is a key
segment of our communications plan.

2. Prosser Memorial Health Family
a. Clinical and support staff;
b. Providers;
c. Hospital leaderships;
d. Board of Commissioners; and
e. Foundation Board of Directors

3. Community Stakeholders
a. Civic leaders;
b. Business owners;
c. Organizations and associations;
d. School district leaders;
e. EMT’s and CPP services; and
f. Outside healthcare networks as referral sources



9This is how we care.

Communication Strategies
Prosser Memorial Health’s 2021 Communications Plan will be a multi-channel approach
in the Yakima and Tri-Cities markets in English and Spanish with appropriate
messaging to match the target audience with the service. We will track volumes, patient
experiences and testimonials to ensure our message is resonating with the intended
audience and is reflected in our bottom line. Since the pandemic we know that TV, radio
and social media have been are most successful channels to use to communicate our
messaging.

Multi-Channel Marketing will include:
1. Newsprint

a. We will continue to use Prosser, Grandview, Sunnyside, Tri-City
Herald, Yakima Herald- Republic, Yakima Magazine and the Kids
Directory but it will be on a smaller scale than in 2020 as it is not
that effective.

2. Billboards
a. 5 in Sunnyside, 1 in Grandview and 1 in Prosser, 2 in Yakima, 2 in Tri-Cities.
b. Mobile billboards in the Tri-Cities.

3. Movie Theater Ads:
a. While these have been successful, they are on hold for now.

4. Radio
a. English and Spanish radio have been very successful in the Yakima

and Tri-Cities markets.

5. TV
a. KAPP/KVEW, FOX, and cable.

6. Social Media
a. Facebook, LinkedIn, Instagram, You Tube, Twitter

7. Digital
a. Search Optimization
b. Search Engine Marketing
c. Behavioral Targeting
d. Geo Fencing
e. Conquer Campaign for competitor’s name when searched
f. PMH Website enhancements for push notifications

8. Direct Mail
a. Quarterly Community Newsletter
b. Postcards introducing new providers and new service lines as needed



10This is how we care.

9. Community Health Education Virtually
a. We will use Facebook and Zoom to conduct regular health education

classes that include our providers and their expertise.

Conclusion:
The 2021 Marketing and Community Relations Plan is robust and aggressive. All
elements of the program will be evaluated monthly with service line directors and clinic
managers to evaluate the return on investment. The plan is designed to be flexible
and responsive to market trends, our competitors’ market share and messaging that
gains the most traction with our target audiences.



11This is how we care.



1 | P a g e

Technology Strategic Plan
2021

Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT C



2 | P a g e

Table of Contents:

I. Technology Plan Executive Summary
II. Mission, Vision, Values, and Standards of

Behavior
III. PMH Technology SWOT Analysis
IV. Technology Recommendations by PMH Pillar



3 | P a g e

Technology Plan
Executive Summary



4 | P a g e

Technology Plan Executive Summary

Leveraging and efficiently using technology is critical to the success of
Prosser Memorial Health (PMH) and its Vision of becoming a top 100
Critical Access Hospital in the United States.

During the next year PMH will continue its transformation in leveraging
technologies to increase efficiencies and competitiveness. The following
will be the focus of the 2021 IT Strategic Plan:

 Continue to support 2021 PMH Strategic Initiatives
 Build and Implement Virtual Desktop Infrastructure
 Continue to enhance PMH Security
 Consider and implement the new Providence Security Services, if

appropriate
 Continue to leverage Health Streams for Epic learning purposes
 Relaunch Epic Super User Program
 Transition from Kadlec VPN circuit to direct circuits to Providence

Tukwila and Quincy data centers
 Implement Microsoft Power BI for fast visual analytics
 Implement new GL software as replacement for Lawson
 Support new telehealth service offerings
 Continue to support improved workflows and processes across the

enterprise
 Continue to improve IT Department efficiencies and communications

Kevin M Hardiek
Chief Information Officer, Services Champion, Studer Champion
PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH
723 MEMORIAL ST | PROSSER, WA 99350



5 | P a g e

o: (509) 788 6032 | | c: (509) 820 9959

I. Mission, Vision,
Values, and
Standards of

Behavior

https://www.prosserhealth.org/


6 | P a g e

Prosser Memorial Health Mission
Prosser Memorial Health will improve the
health of our community.

Technology Mission –

PMH Technology will progressively leverage
technology in full alignment with the
Prosser Memorial Health Mission.



7 | P a g e

Prosser Memorial Health Vision
Prosser Memorial Health will become one of the top 100 Critical Access
Hospitals in the country through the achievement of the following Pillars of
Excellence.

PILLAR OF EXCELLENCE #1: Patient Loyalty

PMH will provide outstanding customer service, aspiring to treat those we
serve the way they want to be treated.

PILLAR OF EXCELLENCE #2: Medical Staff Development

PMH will respond to Medical Staff technology concerns and needs in a
timely manner, pursue initiatives in collaboration with our Medical Staff and
ensure the availability of the appropriate providers for those we serve.

PILLAR OF EXCELLENCE #3: Employee Development

PMH will encourage and provide for the ongoing development of our
employees.

 Open Communication.
 Competitive wages and benefits.
 Selection and retention of effective, caring personnel.
 Utilization and development of talent throughout the organization.
 On-going education.
 Employee recognition.



8 | P a g e

PILLAR OF EXCELLENCE #4: Quality

PMH will develop and maintain a system of continuous improvement which
is incorporated into the daily work of every employee and Medical Staff
member.

PILLAR OF EXCELLENCE #5: Services

PMH will develop and maintain appropriate facilities, technology, and
services to meet the needs of those we serve.

PILLAR OF EXCELLENCE #6: Financial Stewardship

PMH will continue to strengthen its financial stewardship position to
enhance the ability to develop new services, obtain needed technology,
modernize facilities, recruit physicians and ultimately ensure long-term
viability.

Technology Vision
PMH Technology will actively and progressively leverage technology in full
alignment with the Prosser Memorial Health Vision.



9 | P a g e

Prosser Memorial Health Values
ASPIRE to soar to a great height

A Accountability: Take responsibility for our own
behavior.

S Service: Care enough to exceed the expectations of
those we serve.

P Promote Teamwork: Work together to achieve
common goals.

I Integrity: Do the right thing even when no one is
watching.

R Respect: Respect the inherent value and worth of
each person.

E Excellence: Exceed the expectations of those we
serve.

Technology Values –
PMH Technology Team will actively follow
and exhibit Prosser Memorial Health
Values.



10 | P a g e

II. PMH Technology
SWOT Analysis



11 | P a g e

Current Technology Systems: Strengths
 Epic. PMH runs the highly rated electronic health record

software system Epic at a heavily discounted rate through
Providence. PMH is currently on Epic 2020.

 Providence.  We have a great technology partner in Providence
which is one of the largest hospital systems in the United
States. Our partnership with Providence allows PMH access to
additional technology resources in the healthcare field.

Multiple Hosted Cloud Based services.  Cloud based services
(software located offsite with multiple software publishers who
are also the software subject matter experts) are trending up in
technology and leverage software experts to make small
technology teams more efficient.   Epic, Lawson, Kronos, GHX,
CPSI, and other software applications are currently running at
hosted locations.

 Security.  Palo Alto Firewall: Palo Alto is a leader in the Gartner
Magic Quadrant for Enterprise Network Firewalls. Additionally,
we are using Nessus Vulnerability scanning to detect threats
internally.

 Fiber.  Due to the location of Prosser Memorial Health between
the Tri-Cities and Yakima there is prime access to local high
bandwidth fiber optic wide area networking.

 Team.  We have an excellent small internal IT team of 5.75
members.  The team is highly customer focused, talented, and
experienced consisting of 1.75 RNs, 1 Senior Engineer, 2
highly service oriented helpdesk technicians, and 1 CIO
technology leader.

Majority of PC inventory is refreshed.  Approximately 70% is
less than two (2) years old.

Many technology grants and credits are available.  Rural
discounts and credits are available for our network services
and telehealth programs.



12 | P a g e

 Diagnostic Imaging Department Technologies. PMH runs Fuji
PACS system which is fully integrated with Epic 2018. Fuji
PACS is a leader in the PACS system space.

Major Infrastructure Upgraded in 2019 consisting of best in
class Cisco Network and Phones, best in class Pure Storage,
and best in class VMWare virtual servers.

 Great Infrastructure and partner CompuNet who is an all IT
engineering firm and does fantastic work for PMH.

Current Technology Systems: Weaknesses
 Lawson product suite not effective. Will be fully replaced in

2021.
 Epic Knowledge.  Lack of continued learning program and

enough subject matter experts to effectively grow staff epic
knowledge. Relaunch Epic Super User Program.

 Outdated aging Video Surveillance system. Will be fully
replaced in 2021.

Current Technology Systems: Opportunities
 Implement data and analytical dashboards enterprise wide to

improve workflows and processes.
 Increase onsite Epic subject matter expertise and self-

service training to increase leverage in Epic investment.
 Leverage newer technologies in all departments. Healthcare

technologies are rapidly developing and there is great
opportunity for PMH to leverage.

 Increased Epic integration and optimizations to grow PMH
clinical efficiencies in all areas.



13 | P a g e

 Use Huron Studer MyRounding to aggregate rounding data
and to increase rounding efficiency across PMH. Launched
2020.

Current Technology Systems: Threats
 Lack of onsite Epic subject matter expertise and self-service

training to increase leverage in Epic investment.



14 | P a g e

IV. Technology
Recommendations by

PMH Pillar



15 | P a g e

PILLAR OF EXCELLENCE #1: Patient Loyalty

Meet or exceed specific PMH IT PMH Goals as listed in the
PMH LEM.

PILLAR OF EXCELLENCE #2: Medical Staff Development

 Continue to grow Epic expertise through relaunch of Epic
Super User Program and Health Stream education.

 IT Leadership will round on all providers at least once
annually.

PILLAR OF EXCELLENCE #3: Employee Development

Relaunch Epic Super User Program.
 Send out Monthly IT Status Update to all staff.

PILLAR OF EXCELLENCE #4: Quality

 Continue to enhance IT Security Program.
 Implement Virtual Desktop Infrastructure.
 Upgrade Microsoft SharePoint.
 Complete upgrading outdated Microsoft Office 2013 to

Microsoft Office 365.
 Develop and implement new PMH onboarding and off

boarding process.
 Continue to grow Epic expertise through relaunch of Epic

Super User Program and Health Stream education.
 Implementation of new PMH Telemetry/Epic integration.
 Growth in PMH participation in Epic UGM conference and

Providence Community Technologies community events at
UGM and in WA State.

 Implementation of Business Analytics Plan.
 Implementation of Secure Text.
 Implementation of new external Circuits direct to Providence

Tukwila and Quincy data centers.



16 | P a g e

 Complete required Providence Epic Upgrades.

PILLAR OF EXCELLENCE #5: Services

 Implement all new Telehealth solutions.
 Increase technology Storage.
 Enhance backup strategy to add offsite backup to current

backup strategy.
 Implement Epic Cupid, if appropriate
 Implement ED charges enhancement, if appropriate
 Implement any other Epic enhancements, if appropriate

PILLAR OF EXCELLENCE #6: Financial Stewardship

Meet or exceed IT annual operating and capital budgets.



17 | P a g e

Technology Security

Goals:

 Continue to Educate Staff - Introduced InfoSec educational
tool campaigns in 2020

 Reduce Vulnerabilities through continuous security review
 Continue to balance security and performance
 Continually improve CIS20 gap analysis closure
 Implement Internal Directory and File Audit Completed

annually

Current:

 Palo Alto Firewall (URL Filtering, SSL Decryption, Packet
inspection / filter)

 McAfee Threat Prevention – includes virus Scanning,
malware prevention, embedded firewall

 McAfee Host Intrusion Protection (Email Server, Remote
Access Server)

 Imprivata Single Sign On – auto lock feature enabled
 Microsoft Office 365 (formerly IronPort) Secure Email,

Filtering, and Protection
 Annual External Penetration Testing via Vendor



18 | P a g e

 CIS20 Critical Security Controls Annual Gap Analysis
 Nessus continuous vulnerability scanning
 Splunk Infrastructure Monitoring – Servers, Routers,

Switches, Firewall, other device monitoring
 Manage Engine Mobile Management – Encrypted Mobile

Devices
 Microsoft Windows Bit Locker – Hard Drive Encryption
 Duo Multi Factor Authentication (MFA)
 Infosec Phishing Testing and Training
 Infosec Phishing and Security Awareness Training Campaign

– new 2nd half 2020

Future Technology Security Measures

 Addition of Security Contractor – 2021 very possible
Providence Cybersecurity as a Service including Crowdstrike

 Updated on-boarding/off-boarding
 Added Security Cameras through campus.

Providence St. Joseph Technology Security Enhancements



Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT D



 2021 Pillar of Excellence - Project Visioning Goals and Strategies

SD DD CD Open
·       Accommodate family participation in 
patient care: sofa sleeper, mini fridge, etc.
·       Ceiling mounted lifts.
·       Dimmable/adjustable lights in patient 
rooms.
·       Interactive patient call light system.
·       Large television.
·       Shower in every patient room.
·       Spacious patient rooms.
·       Natural lighting and scenic views.
·       Seating by windows in patient rooms.
·       24-hour Cafeteria or healthy vending 
machine options afterhours. 
·       High-quality cafeteria open to patients and 
families.
·       Easy wayfinding with efficient department 
adjacency.
·       Prominent entrance.
·       Alternative vehicle parking (electric 
vehicles, bicycles, etc.)
·       Computer/phone charging stations.
·       Healing garden, walking path, outdoor 
patio.

Pillar of 
Excellence

Objective Key Strategies
Implementation Progress

Patient Loyalty

95% Patient 
Satisfaction

1.      Private patient rooms with appropriate 
amenities.
2.      Use of natural light to create a healing 
environment. 
3.      High-quality community and staff- 
friendly cafeteria. 
4.      Clear wayfinding in the interior and 
exterior of the building, including the use of 
prominent entrances. 
5.      Accessible campus and building for 
everyone. 
6.      Comfortable spaces for families and 
visitors throughout the facility.

Page 1 of 5

Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT E



 2021 Pillar of Excellence - Project Visioning Goals and Strategies

SD DD CD Open

Pillar of 
Excellence

Objective Key Strategies
Implementation Progress

·       Designated Provider parking with easy 
access when on call. 
·       Adequate number of call rooms.
·       Designated workspaces for charting in key 
areas. 
·       Provider lounge.
·       Resident call room or office.
·       Efficient OR room turnover.
·       Additional OR rooms.
·       Private post-op counseling rooms.
·       Ability to accommodate new technology 
(e.g. DaVinci Robot).
·       High tech/high touch.
·       Meeting spaces large enough for the all of 
the Medical Staff meet or provide community 
education. 

Medical Staff 
Development

90% Medical Staff 
Satisfaction

1.      Convenient parking with quick access to 
the facility. 
2.      Respite area for the Medical Staff 
complete with sleep rooms, refreshments, 
computer access, education materials, etc.
3.      Large state of the art operating suite.
4.      A facility that has the ability and space 
to accommodate new and challenging 
technology. 
5.      Modern conference rooms large enough 
to host medical staff meetings, education 
conferences, patient education, etc. 

Page 2 of 5



 2021 Pillar of Excellence - Project Visioning Goals and Strategies

SD DD CD Open

Pillar of 
Excellence

Objective Key Strategies
Implementation Progress

·       Badge entry access.
·       Automatic doors.
·       Improved security. 
·       Efficient space to accommodate 
department operations. 
·       Employee elevator.
·       Stair access. 
·       Reduce unnecessary steps.
·       Employee gathering places for breaks and 
meals. 
·       Education room.
·       Lactation room.
·       Well-lit employee parking.
·       Places to meditate or decompress. 
·       Staff sleep rooms.
·       Outdoor break space with cornhole.
·       Walking path with mile markers.
·       Employee exercise gym. 
·       Staff call system.

Employee 
Development

90% Employee 
Satisfaction

1.      A secure environment for staff, patients, 
and visitors. 
2.      Efficient staff transportation routes 
throughout the facility including the use of 
stairs. 
3.      Respite space for staff, which includes 
restrooms, lockers, quiet space, dining room, 
lactation room etc. 
4.      Convenient well-lit parking lots. 
5.      Recreation opportunities for staff such 
as an exterior walking path, workout facility, 
etc. 

Page 3 of 5



 2021 Pillar of Excellence - Project Visioning Goals and Strategies

SD DD CD Open

Pillar of 
Excellence

Objective Key Strategies
Implementation Progress

·       Adequate negative pressure rooms. 
·       Area for drive-up care. 
·       Building plan for pandemics. 
·       No carpet in hallways and patient 
treatment areas.
·       Hygienic window coverings and privacy 
curtains. 
·       PPE stations with no-touch access. 
·       Temperature control for patient rooms.
·       Temperature control for OR rooms.
·       ADA Compliant design. 
·       Adequate equipment storage. 
·       Adequate supply storage. 
·       LEAN approach to supply and equipment 
storage in every unit. 
·       Efficient Egress.
·    Newborn/pediatric alarm system. 
·       Separate exit for surgery patients. 

Quality

Top 25% of CAH I 
vantage Quality 

Metric

1.      A focus on infection prevention including 
the appropriate use of negative pressure 
rooms, hygienic materials that are easy to 
clean and is designed to manage pandemics.
2.      Appropriate temperature control 
throughout the facility including individual 
patient rooms, OR suits, etc.
3.      A design that is compliant with all ADA 
(American with Disabilities Act) standards.
4.      Adequate storage space throughout the 
facility that uses LEAN principles.
5.      Efficient patient and staff flow between 
departments. 

Page 4 of 5



 2021 Pillar of Excellence - Project Visioning Goals and Strategies

SD DD CD Open

Pillar of 
Excellence

Objective Key Strategies
Implementation Progress

·       Adaptable building design.
·       Build with a plan for future growth. 
·       Community education space. 
·       Helipad.
·       Fast Track in ED.
·       Cancer center.
·       Cardiac Rehab.
·       Pulmonary medicine.
·       Sleep Center. 
·       Surgery Center of Excellence.
·       Additional LDRP’s.
·       Water birth capability. 

·       Low-cost financing for building 
construction. 
·       State-of-the-art inventory management 
system. 
·       ATM.
·       Bill pay station. 
·       Energy efficient building.
·       Use of durable materials.
·       Community use of site.
·       Gift shop.
·       Donor recognition. 
·       Sponsorship opportunities. 

·       Engage Foundation for Community 
Support Fundraising. 

Services

50% Market Share

1.      Utilize a flexible design to accommodate 
future growth. 
2.      Create a flexible community education 
center that can be utilized by staff, community 
groups for health education classes, 
department meetings, etc.
3.      Enhance Emergency Department 
capabilities with the addition of a heliport, fast-
track rooms, separate ED entrance, 
appropriate triage space, etc.
4.      Expand outpatient services such as a 
cancer center with chemotherapy; heart 
center with cardiac rehabilitation; 
pulmonology center with pulmonary 
rehabilitation and sleep center; wound center 
with hyperbaric services; surgical specialty 
clinic; etc. 

Financial 
Stewardship

Total Margin >6%

1.      Obtain low-cost financing for the hospital 
replacement project. 
2.      A state-of-the-art supply chain system 
throughout the entire facility. 
3.      Patient friendly financial 
accommodations such as a convenient bill 
pay station, an ATM machine, etc.
4.      Construct an energy-efficient facility with 
cost-effective materials and systems.
5.      Demonstrate the value of the PMH 
foundation through the development of a gift 
shop and donor recognition area. 

Page 5 of 5



Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT E1



Prosser Memorial Health   

Replacement Hospital 

 

4 Month Outlook 

 

Page 1 RLB 

 

  
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

29 30 01 02 03 04 05

06 07 08 09 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19

20 21 22 23 24 25 26

27 28 29 30 31 01 02

DECEMBER 2020

IN PERSON MEETING
NV5 & BCDG ON SITE

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED

ONLINE MEETING HOLIDAY

DELIVERABLE

CHRISTMAS EVE CHRISTMAS

NEW YEARS EVE

PRC MEETING

BOARD WORKSESSION

PRC PREP MEETING

DESIGN MEETINGS - DEPARTMENT REVIEWS & PRC MEETING

DESIGN MEETINGS - DEPARTMENT REVIEWS

ONLINE DD MEETINGS (AS SCHEDULED)

1/2 DAY DD MEETING

MEETING(S) TO BE
SCHEDULED

LEGEND

SECURITY
SCOPE

Schematic Design &
Estimate Review, and Gas
vs All-Electric Outline BOARD MEETING

Schematic Design
Approval, and Gas vs
All-Electric Direction

USDA MTG

PROJECT TEAM MTG

PMH MEETING 
NO ATTENDANCE BY

PROJECT TEAM

MED EQUIPMENT SURVEY

MED EQP MTG

MATERIALS
MANAGEMENT SCOPE

2ND CPARB
APPLICATION

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

27 28 29 30 31 01 02

03 04 05 06 07 08 09

10 11 12 13 14 15 16

17 18 19 20 21 22 23

24 25 26 27 28 29 30

31 01 02 03 04 05 06

JANUARY 2021

NEW YEARS DAY

DD PACKAGE DUE

BOARD WORKSESSION

MED EQUIPMENT PLANNING 
DD PACKAGE DUE

PROJECT TEAM MEETING

PROJECT TEAM MEETING

DESIGN MEETINGS - DEPARTMENT REVIEWS

PRELIM REVIEW W/ BLDG
DEPT (SDs)

BOARD MEETING

USDA MEETING

2ND PRC MEETING GC/CM QUALIFICATIONS
DUE

Original Project Budget
Review

Original Project Budget
Approval

Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT F



Prosser Memorial Health   

Replacement Hospital 

 

4 Month Outlook 

 

Page 2 RLB 

 

 

FEBRUARY 2021
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

31 01 02 03 04 05 06

07 08 09 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

28 01 02 03 04 05 06

DD ESTIMATE DUE

BOARD WORKSESSION BOARD MEETING

Design Development
Review, GC/CM
Procurement & Selection
Review

Design Development
Approval, GC/CM
Procurement & Selection
Approval

GC/CM INTERVIEW
SHORTLIST ISSUED

GC/CM SELECTION MEETINGNV5 On Site
BCDG via Online

GC/CM INTERVIEWS GC/CM FEES DUE

GC/CM FEE REVIEW

GC/CM SELECTION ISSUED
FINAL GC/CM CONTRACTS

ISSUED

GC/CM PROTEST PERIOD (4 BUSINESS DAYS)

PROJECT TEAM MEETING

USDA MEETING

PROJECT TEAM MEETING

USDA MEETING

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

28 01 02 03 04 05 06

07 08 09 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

28 29 30 31 01 02 03

MARCH 2021

BOARD WORKSESSION BOARD MEETING

PROJECT TEAM MEETING

USDA MEETING

PROJECT TEAM MEETING

USDA MEETING

USDA APPLICATION
SUBMITTED

DESIGN MEETINGS - TENTATIVE

NV5 On Site
BCDG via Online

DESIGN MEETINGS

DESIGN MEETINGS



Seattle takes new approach
in latest bid to curb use of
natural gas in homes
Share
BY NICK BOWMAN
DECEMBER 3, 2020 AT 10:26 PM

Seattle continues to mull a ban on natural gas. (Photo Illustration by Tim Boyle/Getty Images)
A measure to ban natural gas in newly-built single-family homes and buildings
fizzled out in 2019. Now, Seattle Mayor Jenny Durkan is looking to take a
different tack with an updated proposal.

How a gas ban in Seattle could affect housing market

The newly-announced legislation from Durkan would seek to limit the use of
natural gas in newly-constructed large multi-family buildings and commercial
construction. The hope is to reduce the city’s overall carbon emissions, and
combat an ongoing climate crisis.

https://mynorthwest.com/2345086/seattle-new-approach-curb-use-natural-gas-homes/
https://mynorthwest.com/author/nbowman/
https://mynorthwest.com/1506379/natural-gas-ban-seattle-housing-market/
Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT G



“We are facing a climate disaster,” Mayor Durkan said in a written release. “It is
up to Seattle and other cities to make the bold changes necessary to lower our
greenhouse gas emissions.”

Council President Lorena Gonzalez voiced support for the measure Thursday,
indicating that she is “pleased” to see the proposal, and will “look forward to
working with the community and the Mayor on more critical climate action” in the
future.

The 2019 iteration of this legislation was presented by then-Councilmember Mike
O’Brien, and would have broadly banned the implementation of natural gas in all
new single-family home construction in Seattle starting in July of 2020. At the
time, the now-retired councilmember pointed out natural gas in buildings
accounted for roughly a fourth of Seattle’s total greenhouse gas emissions.

But O’Brien’s bill failed to even make it to a vote before the council, after
it sparked a wave of outrage from local construction companies, Puget Sound
Energy, unions, and various other companies that provide services related to
natural gas.

Study: Fossil fuels could cause clouds to disappear

Those concerns were largely rooted in the expansive nature of O’Brien’s
proposed ban, which would have included gas ranges, space and water heating,
and all other uses of natural gas in newly-built single-family homes. A 2018
report indicated that just over half of the city’s single-family homes use natural
gas.

Durkan’s new proposal is less broad, specifically targeting the use of gas for
space and water heating in new large multi-family and commercial buildings,
while requiring “electrical infrastructure necessary for future conversion of any
gas appliances in multi-family buildings.”

The mayor plans to send the legislation to councilmembers “at the end of the
year.” If it’s approved, it would take effect in spring of 2021.

https://mynorthwest.com/1501247/natural-gas-ban-seattle-mike-obrien/?
https://mynorthwest.com/1516521/seattle-city-council-natural-gas-bill-delayed/?
https://mynorthwest.com/1503162/seattle-natural-gas-ban-implementation/
https://mynorthwest.com/1312036/study-fossil-fuels-clouds/


California's Cities Lead the Way to a Gas-Free Future
By Matt Gough December 2, 2020

FacebookTwitterEmail

A coalition of organizations supports San Jose going all-electric.

Photo courtesy of Mothers Out Front

UPDATED December 2: San Jose updated its building code and Oakland became the 40th community in
California to commit to phasing out gas.

Cities and counties in California serve as guiding lights as the state navigates a transition from gas to
clean-energy buildings. Motivated by the climate crisis, worsening air pollution, escalating gas rates, and
safety risks from gas, a new cohort of local government leaders is emerging in California. Over 50 cities
and counties across the state are considering policies to support all-electric new construction.

This blog summarizes the cities and counties that have already adopted gas-free buildings commitments
or electrification building codes (i.e., “reach codes” that go beyond the statewide building code) and is
regularly updated to reflect the latest wins in California. Ordinance language is also linked below.

To urge your city council members to be climate leaders and to create a gas-free future for our homes
and buildings, please sign this petition.To get more involved in the campaign, please sign up here for
updates on what is happening in your city.

So far, 40 cities (listed with the most recent city first) have adopted building codes to reduce their
reliance on gas. More to come with your help! Stay tuned….

40. Oakland- Requires all newly constructed buildings to be all-electric.

https://www.sierraclub.org/other/authors/matt-gough
https://addup.sierraclub.org/campaigns/tell-your-city-to-support-all-electric-homes
https://act.sierraclub.org/actions/National?actionId=AR0201204
https://act.sierraclub.org/actions/National?actionId=AR0201204
https://oakland.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8932328&GUID=A76989E1-478B-4FA5-AA29-7566B7F208BF
Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT H



39. Ojai- Requires all-electric new construction for buildings with some exceptions.

38. Sunnyvale- Requires newly constructed residential and commercial buildings to be all-electric with
an exemption for gas fuel cells. Restaurants may apply for an exemption.

37. Millbrae- Requires all-electric residential and commercial buildings with exemptions for laboratories,
restaurants and gas cooking/fireplaces.

36. Los Altos- Requires all newly constructed buildings to be all-electric with exemptions for gas
cooking/fireplaces in residential buildings with 9 units or less, laboratories and restaurants.

35. East Palo Alto- Requires that new residential and commercial buildings be all-electric, with
exceptions for affordable housing, and commercial kitchens.

34. Redwood City- Adopted a reach code requiring all-electric new construction for commercial and
residential buildings, with exceptions for multiple specific building types such as laboratories.

33. Piedmont- Promotes all-electric new construction for low-rise residential buildings and incentives
electrification for renovations of low-rise residences.

32. San Anselmo- Promotes all electric housing by requiring higher energy efficiency requirements for
mixed fuel projects and prewiring for al electric kitchens.

31. Burlingame- Requires all electric new construction for projects with exemptions for single-family and
commercial projects for gas cooking and fireplaces.

30. Santa Cruz- Requires all electric new construction with exemptions for projects that are deemed to
be in the public interest and for restaurant cooking.

29. Hayward- All new residential buildings are required to be all-electric and nonresidential and high-rise
residential buildings are electric preferred. Mixed-fuel buildings must install solar panels, and the energy
budget must be 10 percent better than code.

28. Richmond- Requires new residential buildings over three stories to have prewiring for electric
readiness and to support all-electric clothes dryers and space and water heating. Allows gas to power
stoves and fireplaces. Requires all buildings under three stories to build all-electric and install a
minimum amount of on-site solar based on square footage.

27. San Mateo County- Requires that no gas or propane plumbing is installed in new buildings, and that
electricity be used as the energy source for water and space heating and cooking and clothes drying
appliances.

26. Campbell- Requires all-electric space and water heating in new residential buildings, accessory
dwelling units, and major remodels.

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1S_2TnmCzzolHTEO3SjdmoSDrJkiNO_Mw/view
https://sunnyvaleca.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8869018&GUID=1DFD5236-F85D-4141-9263-90C27266CE93
https://portal.laserfiche.com/Portal/DocView.aspx?id=11674&repo=r-c2783ec8&searchid=cf9af8b7-a8ad-42e4-800d-824d51273cbe
https://los-altos.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=7&event_id=380&meta_id=66434
http://eastpaloalto.iqm2.com/Citizens/FileOpen.aspx?Type=1&ID=1262&Inline=True
https://meetings.redwoodcity.org/AgendaOnline/Documents/ViewDocument/ATTACHMENT%20A%20%E2%80%93%20ALL-ELECTRIC%20REACH%20CODE%20ORDINANCE.pdf?meetingId=2138&documentType=Agenda&itemId=4397&publishId=6815&isSection=false
https://ci.piedmont.ca.us/government/city_news___notifications/council_to_consider_reach_codes_july_20th
https://sananselmo-ca.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=1&clip_id=411&meta_id=67297
https://burlingameca.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=4584168&GUID=90C1DDF2-D966-40B5-97FE-4B293A8F97A2
http://scsire.cityofsantacruz.com/sirepub/mtgviewer.aspx?meetid=1360&doctype=AGENDA
https://hayward.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=4345454&GUID=25134FC7-B7A3-4060-955A-F7A30A27567A
http://sireweb.ci.richmond.ca.us/sirepub/cache/2/5pod14htlky31xjs4h4iy21r/58235502242020101430928.PDF
https://sanmateocounty.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=4321430&GUID=A74A5241-F81C-4E04-8714-3348F847AC99
https://www.ci.campbell.ca.us/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Agenda/_02042020-2039


25. San Francisco recently expanded on their building electrification ordinance, now requiring that all
new construction be all electric starting June 1st 2021

24. Los Altos Hills- Requires electric space and water heating in new low-rise residential buildings.

23. Cupertino- Requires all buildings, including accessory dwelling units, to be all-electric. Also requires
outdoor pools, spas, and barbeques to be included within the definition of an all-electric building.

22. Los Gatos- Requires all newly constructed single-family and low-rise multifamily buildings to be all-
electric.

21. Healdsburg- Requires electrification for most appliances but grants an exemption for gas cooking
and fireplaces.

20. Brisbane- Requires all newly constructed single-family homes and low-rise multifamily buildings to
be all-electric. Allows exemptions for cooking appliances but requires pre-wiring for electric readiness.

19. Saratoga- Requires all newly constructed buildings to be all-electric.

18. Mill Valley- Requires all newly constructed residential buildings to be all electric.

https://sfgov.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8911593&GUID=A0CEC5DB-30DE-4576-AAAD-6BF8266CC67C
https://losaltoshills.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=2&event_id=436&meta_id=87172
http://cupertino.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5ca87afb-cc24-4227-85aa-778a08d835f3.DOCX
https://meetings.municode.com/d/f?u=https://mccmeetings.blob.core.usgovcloudapi.net/losgatos-pubu/MEET-Packet-caf242554dd246b79dddf7365c1a494e.pdf&n=AgendaPacket-Council%20Meeting-December%2017,%202019%207.00%20PM.pdf
http://healdsburgca.iqm2.com/Citizens/FileOpen.aspx?Type=1&ID=1927&Inline=True
http://brisbaneca.org/sites/default/files/CCAR20191121_Ord643_CH.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/473928/Attachment_A_Ordinance_FINAL.pdf
https://cityofmillvalley.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=2&clip_id=1436&meta_id=67837


17. Pacifica- Requires electrification for most appliances but grants an exemption for gas cooking and
fireplaces in new residential buildings. Requires water and space heaters, cooking appliances, fireplaces,
and clothes dryers to be all-electric for new nonresidential buildings. Public agencies providing
emergency services and nonresidential kitchens are exempted.

16. Santa Rosa- Requires all newly constructed low-rise residential buildings to be all-electric.

15. Milpitas- Limits gas infrastructure for newly constructed buildings on city-owned property.

14. Alameda- Limits gas infrastructure for new residential construction on city-owned property.

13. Palo Alto- Requires all newly constructed low-rise residential buildings to be all-electric, plus higher
energy-efficiency standards and electrification readiness in mixed-fuel non-residential buildings. Will
revisit all-electric requirement for non-residential new construction in 2021.

12. Morgan Hill- Phases out gas hookups in all newly constructed residential buildings and most
nonresidential buildings.

11. Mountain View- Requires electrification for new residential and nonresidential buildings. Does not
exempt gas stoves, fireplaces, or firepits in residential buildings.

10. Marin County- Offered three compliance pathways for newly constructed buildings in
unincorporated buildings: one for all-electric construction, one for limited mixed-fuel construction that
has fewer efficiency requirements because it uses less gas but allows gas stoves, and one for mixed-fuel
construction that requires the most strict compliance with Cal Green Tier 1 and electrification-readiness
requirements.

9. Davis- Requires higher energy-efficiency standards and electrification readiness in mixed-fuel
buildings.

8. San Jose- San Jose passed a natural gas prohibition for all new building types, with limited temporary
exemptions, becoming the largest city in the nation to do so.

7. Menlo Park- Requires all-electric new construction for residential buildings as well as new
nonresidential buildings but allows an exemption for cooking appliances in low-rise residential
buildings.

6. Santa Monica- Requires additional energy-efficiency measures for new residential and nonresidential
buildings that use gas.

5. San Mateo- Requires new residential buildings and buildings with office-use to be all-electric. Adds
additional requirements for rooftop solar and electric vehicle charging.

4. San Luis Obispo- Requires additional energy efficiency and electrification readiness for all newly
constructed buildings and adds a small fee for new mixed-fuel buildings based on expected gas
consumption.

https://pacificacityca.iqm2.com/Citizens/FileOpen.aspx?Type=1&ID=1273&Inline=True
https://santa-rosa.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx
https://mccmeetingspublic.blob.core.usgovcloudapi.net/milpitas-meet-2a8c785448b74b47bb16545f9745bd65/ITEM-Attachment-001-0e272f66c0ff44abb9efbcf4bfc9074b.pdf
https://alameda.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=4205739&GUID=4C03354A-091F-448E-9407-B2C1907DC29A
https://www.cityofpaloalto.org/civicax/filebank/documents/73790
http://morganhillca.iqm2.com/Citizens/Detail_LegiFile.aspx?Frame=&MeetingID=1821&MediaPosition=2725.237&ID=2508&CssClass=
https://mountainview.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=4198030&GUID=9A1AB443-F524-4487-8E8E-07BEE56C3C83&Options=&Search=
http://www.buildingdecarb.org/uploads/3/0/7/3/30734489/reach_code_overview_september_2019__002_.pdf
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B1CjIKwIjNVhZkJtNjJMdUVuZ0h5M0JaN2tsS1o4RHhOSG5z/view?usp=sharing
https://sanjose.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8945019&GUID=B8ED8E96-E24F-4095-9BB6-D542081A0118
https://www.menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/22773/F5---20190910-Intro-reach-code-ord---CC?bidId=
http://santamonicacityca.iqm2.com/Citizens/Detail_LegiFile.aspx?Frame=&MeetingID=1192&MediaPosition=&ID=3681&CssClass=
https://www.cityofsanmateo.org/DocumentCenter/View/82369/Agenda-Report---Building-Electrification-Reach-Codes
https://www.slocity.org/home/showdocument?id=23818


3. Windsor- Mandates all-electric new construction for low-rise residential buildings, including single-
family homes, multifamily homes with fewer than four stories, and detached accessory dwelling units (
but attached ones are exempt).

2. Berkeley- Phases out gas hookups in all newly constructed residential buildings and most
nonresidential buildings.

1.Carlsbad- Requires heat pump water heaters or solar thermal water heating in new residential
buildings that have fewer than four stories.

City and county leadership is essential not just for local climate action but also to convince the California
Energy Commission to require or at least support all-electric new construction in the statewide building
code (Title 24).

The CEC updates Title 24 every three years. The 2019 version of Title 24 went into effect January 1,
2020. The CEC is already working on the next iteration of Title 24, which will come out in 2022. All of this
community and city support for more-ambitious building codes sends a strong signal to the CEC to align
the statewide building code with climate science and require all-electric new construction. Californians
deserve nothing less.

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1yfCNuSH5KtbCRYgO-i0QU2_Fgyy104t3/view
https://www.dropbox.com/s/2e2bmk8gtlvcjku/2019-12-3%20Agenda%20Packet%20-%20Council%20-%20WEB.pdf?dl=0
https://www.carlsbadca.gov/services/depts/pw/environment/cap/waterheat.asp


bcDESIGNGROUP
12101 W 110th Street, Suite 100
Overland Park, Kansas 66210
913.232.2123

MEETING AGENDAS

Project: PMH Replacement Hospital

Dates: December 1-3, 2020 - Revised

Meetings: Various – See Below

Location: Vineyard Room
Prosser Memorial Health

Day 1
Tuesday, 12/01

7.5-Hours Departmental Design Development Meetings:
Goal: Departmental meetings with departmental leaders and key

staff to understand next level of design including equipment, basic
finish materials and room specific needs

Attendees: A/E Team, NV5, departmental leaders

7:00- 8:00 OR Design with Surgeons (Merry, Sara, Surgeons, Sollers, Karen Ventura-Mitchell Planning)
8:00-10:00 LDRP (Merry, Dr. Sollers, Key LDRP staff)
10:00-11:30 Rehab (Merry, key rehab staff, Karen Ventura-Mitchell Planning)

11:30-12:30 Lunch

12:30-2:30 Acute Care (Merry, Marla) ICU (Merry Key ICU Staff)

2:30-:3:30 PRC Meeting Prep
Goal: Prep for PRC Interview
Attendees: A/E team, NV5, Admin Team

Day 2
Wednesday, 12/02

8.5-Hours Departmental Design Development Meetings:
Goal: Departmental meetings with departmental leaders and key

staff to understand next level of design including equipment, basic
finish materials and room specific needs

Attendees: A/E Team, NV5, departmental leaders

7:30-8:30 Lab (Susan, Key Lab Staff, Karen Ventura-Mitchell Planning + Mitchell Lab Planner)

Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT J



bcDESIGNGROUP
12101 W 110th Street, Suite 100
Overland Park, Kansas 66210
913.232.2123

8:30-10:30 Clinic (Merry, Alana, Dr. Sollers, Karen Ventura-Mitchell Planning) Cardio Pulm + Sleep (Merry,
Rusty, Karen Ventura-Mitchell Planning)

10:30-11:00 Exterior Building Massing:
Goal: Final exterior massing and views
Attendees: A/E team, NV5, Admin team

11:00-11:30 MEP Systems Discussions:
Goal: Continued conversations about MEP Systems and Goals.

Understand Gas vs. Electric facility.
Attendees: Craig, David, Merry, Steve B, A/E Team, NV5

11:30-12:00 Review of the Project Goals, Objectives & Key Strategies
Goal: talk through the Pillar Goals, Objectives, and as a project team run through the key
strategies listed on the document to discuss what key strategies the design can take on
within the project budget.
Attendees: A/E team, NV5, Admin team

12:00-1:00 Interior Design Elements:
Working Lunch Goal: Review interior design elements and materials for patient rooms and Lobby. Begin

discussion on interior signage needs
Attendees: A/E team, NV5, Admin team, Sollers

1:00–2:30 Pharmacy (Merry, Key pharmacy staff, Karen Ventura-Mitchell Planning)

2:30-5:00 Surgery Staff and Central Sterile (Merry, Sara, OR/PACU Leads, Melissa Garcia, Karen
Ventura-Mitchell Planning)

Day 3
Thursday, 12/03

6.25-Hours Departmental Design Development Meetings:
Goal: Departmental meetings with departmental leaders and key

staff to understand next level of design including equipment, basic
finish materials and room specific needs

Attendees: A/E Team, NV5, departmental leaders

7:00-9:00 Emergency Department (Merry, Christi, Dr. Wenger, Key ED Staff)
9:00-9:30 Implementation Meeting:

Goal: Discuss basis of design as it pertains to products, hardware, etc.
Discuss SD cost estimate and develop budget control options

Attendees: A/E team, NV5, Admin Team, Steve
9:30 – 10:30 Debrief on Design Meetings Attendees:  A/E team/NV5/Admin Team
11:00 – 12:00 Boxed Lunch

12:15-2:00 PRC Meeting



bcDESIGNGROUP
12101 W 110th Street, Suite 100
Overland Park, Kansas 66210
913.232.2123

2:00 – 4:00 Acute Care (Merry, Marla) ICU (Merry Key ICU Staff)



Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT L



Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT M



 

 

Principals

Rod Knipper, AIA

Dennis W. Dean, AIA

Brian J. Andringa, AIA

December 1, 2020 

Board of Commissioners 

Prosser Public Hospital District 

723 Memorial Street 

Prosser, WA 99350 

Re: Chardonnay Clinic TI 

KDA Project No. 201747 

Dear Commissioners: 

We believe Total Site Services LLC of Richland, Washington, the contractor for the subject 

project, has fulfilled all the requirements of the contract documents for this project. 

We hereby declare this project to be complete and recommend at this time the Board pass a 

resolution to release all retained amounts. Should the Board agree with this recommendation 

and pass such a resolution, the retained amount can be released 30 days from the passage of 

the resolution. 

Sincerely, 

Randy Anderson, Project Manager 

 

cc: Craig Marks, Prosser Memorial Health (via e-mail) 

Steve Broussard, Prosser Memorial Health (via e-mail) 

V:\Projects\2017\201747 PMH Chardonnay Clinic\9.0 Construction Administration\9.14 Payment Applications\Pay App 6 - Retention\Letter To 

Hospital Board\BOC Recommendation Letter-Chardonnay.Docx 

 

Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT N



PROSSER PUBLIC HOSPITAL DISTRICT
BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON

RESOLUTION NO. 1048
Completion of the Chardonnay Clinic Remodel Project (aka Chardonnay Clinic TI)

WHEREAS, Prosser Public Hospital District, Benton County, Washington contracted with Total
Site Services, LLC of Richland, Washington, for the Chardonnay Clinic Remodel project and

WHEREAS, KDF Architecture provided oversight of the mentioned project, and

WHEREAS, KDF Architecture advises that Total Site Services, LLC. has completed all
of the contractual requirements regarding the referenced project,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of Prosser
Public Hospital District declares the remodel of the Chardonnay Clinic Remodel Project
complete, and directs Administration to release all retained amounts to Total Site Services, LLC
after a period of thirty days, pending receipt of project completion approvals from the
Washington State Department of Revenue, the Washington State Department of Labor and
Industries and the Washington State Employment Security Department.

Dated this 17th Day of December 2020.

_____________________________ ______________________________
President and Commissioner Secretary and Commissioner

_____________________________ ______________________________
Commissioner Commissioner

_____________________________ ______________________________
Commissioner Commissioner

_____________________________
Commissioner

Resolution 1048 Page 1 of 1



Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT O





Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT P







































Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT Q



2020 ASPIRE MEDAL AWARD WINNERS

Gold Winners Silver Winners Bronze Winners

 Alex Carballo  Rosemary Mendoza  Alexia Verduzco

 Brian Brindle  Maryanne Vanguardia  Jay Boyle

 Tina Salgado  Sasha Thomasson  Crystal Blanco

 Beth Phinney  Dr. Jared Clifford  Dr. Santa Cruz

 Jay Boyle  Annabelle Hansen  Dr. Carolyn O’Connor

 Malissa Garcia  Mara Ripplinger  ShaRonda Lewis

 Janie Gonzalez  Kirstie Wood

 Corryn Koopmans  Laura Sosa

 Billy Wilson  Cecilia Garcia

 Ana Martin

 Donna Tuning

 Meagan Bronkhorst

 Tasha Sears

Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT R



11/30/2020 10/31/2020 11/30/2019 11/30/2020 10/31/2020 11/30/2019
Cash & Temporary Investments 10,245,788     12,715,913     723,428           Current Portion of Bonds Payable 543,158           588,460           476,432           

Current Portion Capital Leases -                        -                        -                        
Gross Patient Accounts Receivable 27,862,475     27,229,788     25,655,024     Accounts Payable 1,671,495       1,388,215       1,602,150       
Less Allowances for Uncollectible (17,054,000)    (16,239,900)    (15,429,000)    Payroll & Related Liabilities 3,325,376       2,901,056       2,714,097       

Net Patient Receivables 10,808,475     10,989,888     10,226,024     Cost Report Payable 785,507           7,358,833       69,429             
Other Payables to 3rd Parties 465,709           465,709           2,222,424       

Taxes Receivable 34,240             162,461           32,991             Deferred Tax Revenue 69,466             138,932           830,700           
Receivable from 3rd Party Payor 1,136,310       1,686,995       937,676           Deferred EHR Medicare Revenue 27,517             55,033             357,717           
Inventory 466,475           459,149           345,055           Deferred COVID Revenue 11,552,965     8,183,503       -                        
Prepaid Expenses 1,402,689       1,491,453       1,324,712       Accrued Interest Payable 118,019           98,349             121,844           
Other Current Assets 14,981             63,235             81,471             Other Current Liabilities -                        -                        -                        

Total Current Assets 24,108,958     27,569,094     13,671,357     Total Current Liabilities 18,559,212     21,178,090     8,394,793       

Whitehead Fund - LGIP 1,213,424       1,213,263       1,204,075       
Funded Depreciation - Cash 791,283           6,859,680       766,553           Non Current Liabilities
Funded Depreciation - TVI 15,393,352     12,391,739     13,759,942     Bonds Payable net of CP 10,965,979     10,966,322     11,781,801     
Bond Obligation Cash Reserve 767,472           767,459           -                        Capital Leases net of CP 1,096,379       1,096,379       418,578           
Tax Exempt Lease Funds 1,001,868       1,001,864       1,188,813       Total Non Current Liabilities 12,062,358     12,062,701     12,200,379     

Board Designated Assets 19,167,399     22,234,005     16,919,383     

Land 478,396           478,396           478,396           Total Liabilities 30,621,570     33,240,791     20,595,172     
Property Plant & Equipment 43,501,846     43,099,148     41,266,647     
Accumulated Depreciation (28,230,570)    (27,999,589)    (25,808,261)    

Net Property Plant & Equipment 15,749,672     15,577,955     15,936,782     Fund Balance
Unrestricted Fund Balance 31,194,383     34,931,778     28,741,362     

Investment & Other Non Current Assets 1,044,484       1,046,075       1,063,572       Restricted Fund Balance -                    -                    -                    
Land - Gap Road 1,745,440       1,745,440       1,745,440       Total Fund Balance 31,194,383     34,931,778     28,741,362     

Net Investments & Other Non Current Assets 2,789,924       2,791,515       2,809,012       

Total Assets 61,815,953$   68,172,569$   49,336,534$   Total Liabilities & Fund Balance 61,815,953$   68,172,569$   49,336,534$   

Balance Sheet
November 30, 2020

Assets Liabilities & Fund Balance

1

Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT S



11/30/2020 10/31/2020 12/31/2019 11/30/2020 10/31/2020 12/31/2019
Cash & Temporary Investments 10,245,788     12,715,913     790,127           Current Portion of Bonds Payable 543,158           588,460           447,395           

-                        -                        Current Portion Capital Leases -                        -                        418,578           
Gross Patient Accounts Receivable 27,862,475     27,229,788     26,420,075     Accounts Payable 1,671,495       1,388,215       1,217,346       
Less Allowances for Uncollectible (17,054,000)    (16,239,900)    (15,682,980)    Payroll & Related Liabilities 3,325,376       2,901,056       3,516,028       

Net Patient Receivables 10,808,475     10,989,888     10,737,095     Cost Report Payable 785,507           7,358,833       839,378           
-                        -                        Other Payables to 3rd Parties 465,709           465,709           465,709           

Taxes Receivable 34,240             162,461           26,908             Deferred Tax Revenue 69,466             138,932           -                        
Receivable from 3rd Party Payor 1,136,310       1,686,995       832,383           Deferred EHR Medicare Revenue 27,517             55,033             330,200           
Inventory 466,475           459,149           401,623           Deferred COVID Revenue 11,552,965     8,183,503       -                        
Prepaid Expenses 1,402,689       1,491,453       1,608,293       Accrued Interest Payable 118,019           98,349             19,670             
Other Current Assets 14,981             63,235             204,486           Other Current Liabilities -                        -                        -                        

Total Current Assets 24,108,958     27,569,094     14,600,915     Total Current Liabilities 18,559,212     21,178,090     7,254,304       
-                        -                        -                        -                        

Whitehead Fund - LGIP 1,213,424       1,213,263       1,205,889       -                        -                        
Funded Depreciation - Cash 791,283           6,859,680       44,372             Non Current Liabilities -                        -                        
Funded Depreciation - TVI 15,393,352     12,391,739     13,880,674     Bonds Payable net of CP 10,965,979     10,966,322     11,511,447     
Bond Obligation Cash Reserve 767,472           767,459           -                        Capital Leases net of CP 1,096,379       1,096,379       -                        
Tax Exempt Lease Funds 1,001,868       1,001,864       346,920           Total Non Current Liabilities 12,062,358     12,062,701     11,511,447     

Board Designated Assets 19,167,399     22,234,005     15,477,855     0 0
-                        -                        -                        -                        

Land 478,396           478,396           478,396           Total Liabilities 30,621,570     33,240,791     18,765,751     
Property Plant & Equipment 43,501,846     43,099,148     41,059,108     -                        -                        
Accumulated Depreciation (28,230,570)    (27,999,589)    (26,030,986)    -                        -                        

Net Property Plant & Equipment 15,749,672     15,577,955     15,506,518     Fund Balance -                        -                        
-                        -                        Unrestricted Fund Balance 31,194,383     34,931,778     29,626,958     

Investment & Other Non Current Assets 1,044,484       1,046,075       1,061,981       Restricted Fund Balance -                    -                    -                    
Land - Gap Road 1,745,440       1,745,440       1,745,440       Total Fund Balance 31,194,383     34,931,778     29,626,958     

Net Investments & Other Non Current Assets 2,789,924       2,791,515       2,807,421       

Total Assets 61,815,953$   68,172,569$   48,392,709$   Total Liabilities & Fund Balance 61,815,953$   68,172,569$   48,392,709$   

Balance Sheet
November 30, 2020

Assets Liabilities & Fund Balance

2



Prior Prior
Actual Budget Variance % Year % Actual Budget Variance % Year %

Gross Patient Services Revenue
3,168,278$     2,855,054$     313,224$         11% 2,617,549$     21% Inpatient 30,766,279$   31,661,372$   (895,093)$       -3% 29,435,136$   5%

10,188,162     10,393,887     (205,725)          -2% 8,716,943       17% Outpatient 99,738,046     115,263,926   (15,525,880)    -13% 99,534,013     0%
13,356,440     13,248,941     107,499           1% 11,334,492     18% Total Gross Patient Services Revenue 130,504,325   146,925,298   (16,420,973)    -11% 128,969,149   1%

Deductions from Revenue
Contractual Allowances

2,496,898       2,662,698       165,800           6% 2,234,020       12% Medicare 23,563,360     29,528,224     5,964,864       20% 25,030,451     -6%
3,231,634       2,944,278       (287,356)          -10% 3,351,182       -4% Medicaid 29,020,427     32,650,827     3,630,400       11% 28,959,732     0%
1,865,577       1,700,881       (164,696)          -10% 490,384           280% Negotiated Rates 16,800,255     18,862,070     2,061,815       11% 15,763,672     7%

109,178           185,990           76,812             41% 12,337             785% Other Adjustments 1,743,223       2,062,553       319,330           15% 1,405,499       24%
7,703,287       7,493,847       (209,440)          -3% 6,087,923       27% Gross Contractual Allowances 71,127,265     83,103,674     11,976,409     14% 71,159,354     0%
7,703,287       7,493,847       (209,440)          -3% 6,087,923       27% Net Contractual Allowances 71,127,265     83,103,674     11,976,409     14% 71,159,354     0%

141,999           165,298           23,299             14% 182,296           -22% Charity Care 1,510,475       1,833,082       322,607           18% 1,637,737       -8%
537,735           348,606           (189,129)          -54% 442,390           22% Bad Debt 3,195,412       3,865,900       670,488           17% 3,517,159       -9%

8,383,021       8,007,751       (375,270)          -5% 6,712,609       25% Total Deductions From Revenue 75,833,152     88,802,656     12,969,504     15% 76,314,250     -1%

4,973,419       5,241,190       (267,771)          -5% 4,621,883       8% Net Patient Services Revenue 54,671,173     58,122,642     (3,451,469)      -6% 52,654,899     4%
(3,369,462)      -                    (3,369,462)      0% -                    0% COVID Net Revenue 1,745,993       -                    1,745,993       0% -                    0%

124,915           59,304             65,611             111% 144,372           -13% Other Operating Revenue 853,217           988,619           (135,402)          -14% 1,439,058       -41%
1,728,872       5,300,494       (3,571,622)      -67% 4,766,255       -64% Net Revenue 57,270,383     59,111,261     (1,840,878)      -3% 54,093,957     6%

Operating Expenses
2,438,217       2,375,660       (62,557)            -3% 2,333,751       4% Salaries 26,362,735     26,204,161     (158,574)          -1% 24,589,732     7%

653,867           550,363           (103,504)          -19% 503,958           30% Benefits 6,269,043       6,069,810       (199,233)          -3% 5,421,591       16%
221,005           194,854           (26,151)            -13% 246,218           -10% Purchased Labor 2,478,500       2,160,852       (317,648)          -15% 2,572,844       -4%

3,313,089       3,120,877       (192,212)          -6% 3,083,927       7% Sub-Total Labor Costs 35,110,278     34,434,823     (675,455)          -2% 32,584,167     8%

371,858           316,609           (55,249)            -17% 352,355           6% Professional Fees - Physicians 3,713,161       3,482,701       (230,460)          -7% 3,652,715       2%
49,263             45,205             (4,058)              -9% 57,445             -14% Professional Fees - Other 466,471           497,252           30,781             6% 462,567           1%

689,856           636,677           (53,179)            -8% 764,707           -10% Supplies 7,253,375       7,104,983       (148,392)          -2% 6,369,798       14%
36,935             44,683             7,748                17% 48,996             -25% Purchased Services - Utilities 499,426           491,514           (7,912)              -2% 453,924           10%

375,342           280,078           (95,264)            -34% 314,069           20% Purchased Services - Other 2,947,446       3,084,443       136,997           4% 3,065,517       -4%
154,333           188,579           34,246             18% 168,019           -8% Rentals & Leases 1,872,695       2,074,365       201,670           10% 1,945,505       -4%

74,031             61,442             (12,589)            -20% 52,025             42% Insurance License & Taxes 816,814           672,295           (144,519)          -21% 674,733           21%
232,571           226,667           (5,904)              -3% 222,109           5% Depreciation & Amortization 2,525,834       2,493,333       (32,501)            -1% 2,219,280       14%
212,650           122,505           (90,145)            -74% 135,294           57% Other Operating Expenses 1,041,793       1,347,555       305,762           23% 1,205,656       -14%

2,196,839       1,922,445       (274,394)          -14% 2,115,019       4% Sub-Total Non-Labor Expenses 21,137,015     21,248,441     111,426           1% 20,049,695     5%

5,509,928       5,043,322       (466,606)          -9% 5,198,946       6% Total Operating Expenses 56,247,293     55,683,264     (564,029)          -1% 52,633,862     7%

(3,781,056)      257,172           (4,038,228)      -1570% (432,691)          774% Operating Income (Loss) 1,023,090       3,427,997       (2,404,907)      -70% 1,460,095       -30%

Non Operating Income 
75,013             69,466             5,547                8% 69,785             7% Tax Revenue 784,741           764,123           20,618             3% 777,474           1%

687                   22,706             (22,019)            -97% 21,943             -97% Investment Income 171,344           249,770           (78,426)            -31% 278,351           -38%
(32,052)            (33,632)            1,580                -5% (34,166)            -6% Interest Expense (368,524)          (369,954)          1,430                0% (322,040)          14%

-                    537                   (537)                  -100% 14,420             -100% Other Non Operating Income (Expense) (39,531)            5,903                (45,434)            -770% 71,875             -155%
43,648             59,077             (15,429)            -26% 71,982             -39% Total Non Operating Income 548,030           649,842           (101,812)          -16% 805,660           -32%

(3,737,408)$    316,249$         (4,053,657)$    -1282% (360,709)$       936% Net Income (Loss) 1,571,120$     4,077,839$     (2,506,719)$    -61% 2,265,755$     -31%

Statement of Operations
November 30, 2020

Month Ending Year to Date

3



November 30, 2020

CURRENT MONTH YEAR TO DATE 
Actual Actual 

NET INCOME TO NET CASH BY OPERATIONS

(3,737,408) NET INCOME (LOSS) 1,571,120                

232,571                             Depreciation Expense 2,525,834                
-                                      Amortization -                             
-                                      Loss (Gain) on Sale of Assets 43,731                      

(3,504,837) TOTAL 4,140,685

WORKING CAPITAL

990,011                             Decrease (Increase) in Assets 52,382                      
(2,618,878)                        Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities 11,304,908              

(5,133,704)                        NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATIONS 15,497,975              

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(416,382)                           Capital Purchasing (3,061,741)               
13,684                               Proceeds on Capital Assets Sold 14,184                      

(329)                                   Investment Activity 694,787                    
(403,027)                           NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (2,352,770)               

(5,536,731)                        NET CHANGE IN CASH 13,145,205              

CASH BALANCE

34,949,918                       BEGINNING 16,267,982              

29,413,187                       ENDING 29,413,187              

(5,536,731)                        NET CASH FLOW 13,145,205              

Statement of Cash Flows

4



CURRENT

Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual 

NET INCOME TO NET CASH BY OPERATIONS

NET INCOME (LOSS) (360,709)        369,020         240,864 (120,425) (149,776) 986,436 1,070,603 2,224,029 182,430 (1,219,339) 1,353,443 740,261 (3,737,408)

Depreciation Expense 222,109         224,314         222,577         227,538         224,010         228,367         229,348         231,347         232,391         232,273         232,977         232,435         232,571         
Amortization -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Loss (Gain) on Sale of Assets -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  (500)                (13,684)          57,915            57,915            -                  -                  -                  -                  

TOTAL (138,600) 593,334 463,441 107,113 74,234 1,214,303 1,286,267 2,513,291 472,736 (987,066) 1,586,420 972,696 (3,504,837)

WORKING CAPITAL

Decrease (Increase) in Assets 14,884            (645,214)        (518,949)        (469,109)        555,768         (2,528,363)     3,723,881      (486,472)        (318,018)        (14,218)          (653,646)        (514,529)        990,011         
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities 83,018            (772,023)        (648,957)        83,249            262,126         9,360,425      6,000,562      (1,245,038)     150,847         1,587,624      (1,240,729)     (386,324)        (2,618,878)     

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATIONS (40,698)          (823,903)        (704,465)        (278,747)        892,128         8,046,365      11,010,710    781,781         305,565         586,340         (307,955)        71,843           (5,133,704)    

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital Purchasing (380,203)        207,539         (292,919)        (35,283)          (124,590)        (350,621)        (231,586)        (44,273)          (95,029)          (438,167)        (170,231)        (441,591)        (416,382)        
Proceeds on Capital Assets Sold -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  500                 13,684            13,684            13,684            13,684            13,684            13,684            13,684            
Investment Activity 248,949         (758,465)        69,190            95,603            (343)                993,481         (542,037)        (15,858)          (346)                (340)                (142,646)        (36,647)          (329)                
NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (131,254)        (550,926)        (223,729)        60,320           (124,933)        643,360         (759,939)        (46,447)          (81,691)          (424,823)        (299,193)        (464,554)        (403,027)        

NET CHANGE IN CASH (171,952)        (1,374,829)    (928,194)        (218,427)        767,195         8,689,725      10,250,771    735,334         223,874         161,517         (607,148)        (392,711)        (5,536,731)    

CASH BALANCE

BEGINNING 17,814,763    17,642,811    16,267,982    15,339,788    15,121,361    15,888,556    24,578,281    34,829,052    35,564,386    35,788,260    35,949,777    35,342,629    34,949,918    

ENDING 17,642,811    16,267,982    15,339,788    15,121,361    15,888,556    24,578,281    34,829,052    35,564,386    35,788,260    35,949,777    35,342,629    34,949,918    29,413,187    

NET CASH FLOW (171,952)        (1,374,829)    (928,194)        (218,427)        767,195         8,689,725      10,250,771    735,334         223,874         161,517         (607,148)        (392,711)        (5,536,731)    

Statement of Cash Flows - 12 Month Trend
November 30, 2020

5



November December January February March April May June July August September October November
2019 2019 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

PAYMENTS RECEIVED
Commercial 1,712,336 2,110,960 2,164,596 1,790,819 2,042,936 2,163,134 1,479,262 1,568,932 1,966,089 2,328,603 1,932,284 2,057,192 2,121,099

Medicaid 1,150,609 1,223,633 1,287,731 1,116,011 1,207,273 1,200,088 1,130,387 1,262,461 1,296,508 1,371,106 1,358,423 1,429,474 1,434,182
Medicare 1,316,188 1,730,631 1,555,473 597,037 1,403,309 1,326,305 808,729 1,045,301 949,542 1,178,489 1,325,118 1,344,604 1,130,711

VA 28,210 26,049 24,261 82,909 34,277 86,268 45,965 70,641 70,064 118,354 85,351 70,487 42,931
Worker's Comp 126,432 66,062 396,141 180,120 165,706 151,215 95,669 83,546 248,425 126,561 155,717 206,217 132,385

Self Pay 630,997 265,490 37,674 182,202 162,759 149,324 131,139 128,649 132,739 107,395 191,284 89,981 143,017
Other Non Patient Payments 287,781 660,275 212,931 210,958 475,782 8,941,682 10,681,077 971,815 1,655,778 246,772 169,631 273,224 1,081,347

Cash Received (Patients, Insurance, Other) 5,252,553      6,083,101      5,678,807      4,160,056      5,492,042      14,018,016    14,372,228    5,131,345      6,319,145      5,477,280      5,217,808      5,471,179      6,085,672        

Patient Refunds (7,988)             (6,268)             (4,845)             (4,203)             (4,127)             (1,869)             (4,541)             (27,317)          (5,139)             (249,345)        (2,394)             (10,779)          (1,149)              
AP Expenses (2,649,740)     (3,762,411)     (2,627,585)     (2,059,339)     (2,101,189)     (2,556,196)     (1,622,076)     (1,936,338)     (1,949,460)     (2,539,456)     (2,647,582)     (2,919,906)     (2,202,548)       

Settlement LumpSum Payments (1,187,000)     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  (195,696)        -                  (6,591,980)       
Payroll Expenses (2,329,107)     (2,652,323)     (3,566,717)     (2,279,658)     (2,437,474)     (2,362,138)     (2,148,321)     (2,270,065)     (3,645,038)     (2,374,466)     (2,751,586)     (2,434,147)     (2,327,668)       

Loan/Interest Expense (57,467)          (57,467)          (114,934)        -                  (57,467)          (57,467)          (114,934)        (118,019)        (57,467)          (57,467)          (57,467)          (57,467)          (57,467)            

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING 208,251          (1,582,368)     (635,275)        (183,144)        891,785          9,040,346      10,482,357    779,607          662,041          256,546          (436,917)        48,880            (5,095,140)       

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital Purchasing (380,203)        207,539          (292,919)        (35,283)          (124,590)        (350,621)        (231,586)        (44,273)          (438,167)        (95,029)          (170,231)        (441,591)        (441,591)          
NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (380,203)        207,539          (292,919)        (35,283)          (124,590)        (350,621)        (231,586)        (44,273)          (438,167)        (95,029)          (170,231)        (441,591)        (441,591)          

NET CHANGE IN CASH (171,952)        (1,374,829)     (928,194)        (218,427)        767,195          8,689,725      10,250,771    735,334          223,874          161,517          (607,148)        (392,711)        (5,536,731)       

CASH BALANCE

BEGINNING 17,814,763    17,642,811    16,267,982    15,339,788    15,121,361    15,888,556    24,578,281    34,829,052    35,564,386    35,788,260    35,949,777    35,342,629    34,949,918      

ENDING 17,642,811    16,267,982    15,339,788    15,121,361    15,888,556    24,578,281    34,829,052    35,564,386    35,788,260    35,949,777    35,342,629    34,949,918    29,413,187      

NET CASH FLOW (171,952)        (1,374,829)     (928,194)        (218,427)        767,195          8,689,725      10,250,771    735,334          223,874          161,517          (607,148)        (392,711)        (5,536,731)       

Direct Cash Flow Statement
November 30, 2020

6



Prior Change
Actual Budget Variance % Actual Budget Variance % Year

Key Volumes
217 204 13 6% Inpatient Acute Days 2,155 2,277 (122) -5% 2,216          -3%

99 172 (73) -42% Inpatient Swing Days 1,409 1,921 (512) -27% 1,868          -25%
316 376 (60) -16% Total Inpatient Days 3,564 4,198 (634) -15% 4,084 -13%

98 82 16 20% Inpatient Admissions 928 914 14 2% 904             3%
94 82 12 15% Inpatient Discharges 924 914 10 1% 911             1%
11 12 (1) -12% Swing Bed Discharges 103 140 (37) -26% 121             -15%

1,332 1,745 (412) -24% Adjusted Patient Days 15,118 19,481 (4,363) -22% 17,894 -16%
10.53 12.53 (2.00) -16% Average Daily Census 10.64 12.53 (1.89) -15% 12.23 -13%

396 380 16 4% Adjusted Discharges 3,919 4,242 (323) -8% 3,992 -2%
2.31 2.49 (0.18) -7% Average Length of Stay - Hospital 2.33 2.49 (0.16) -6% 2.43 -4%
9.00 13.77 (4.77) -35% Average Length of Stay - Swing Bed 13.68 13.77 (0.09) -1% 15.44 -11%
42% 50% -8% -16% Acute Care Occupancy (25) 43% 50% -8% -15% 49% -13%

45 37 8 22% Deliveries 445 413 32 8% 390 14%
123 124 (1) -1% Surgical Procedures 1,086 1,387 (301) -22% 1,304 -17%
769 1,008 (239) -24% Emergency Dept Visits 8,877 11,262 (2,385) -21% 11,106 -20%

12,830 12,094 736 6% Laboratory Tests 128,455 135,046 (6,591) -5% 121,611 6%
2,622 2,087 535 26% Radiology Exams 24,349 23,303 1,046 4% 21,160 15%

975 1,048 (73) -7% PMH Specialty Clinic 10,621 11,707 (1,086) -9% 10,567 1%
767 991 (224) -23% PMH - Benton City Clinic Visits 9,534 11,071 (1,537) -14% 10,580 -10%

1,556 1,038 518 50% PMH - Prosser Clinic Visits 13,424 11,588 1,836 16% 10,601 27%
514 610 (96) -16% PMH - Grandview Clinic Visits 6,611 6,807 (196) -3% 6,156 7%
593 699 (106) -15% PMH - Women's Health Clinic Visits 6,510 7,804 (1,294) -17% 5,027 30%

LABOR FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT
269.82 290.82 21.00 7% Employed Staff FTE's 265.65 290.82 25.17 9% 262.00       1%

29.13 30.48 1.35 4% Employed Provider FTE 29.37 30.48 1.11 4% 26.77          10%
298.95 321.30 22.35 7% All Employee FTE's 295.02 321.30 26.28 8% 288.77 2%

272.52 273.11 0.59 0% Productive FTE's 258.89 273.11 14.22 5% 254.72       2%

13.75 20.86 7.11 34% Outsourced Therapy FTE's 13.90 20.86 6.96 33% 16.80          -17%
3.56 1.56 (2.00) -128% Contracted Staff FTE's 4.06 4.07 0.01 0% 4.07 0%

17.31 22.42 5.11 All Purchased Staff FTE's 17.96 22.42 6.97 31% 20.87          -14%

7.96            4.58            (3.38)           -74% Contracted Provider FTE's 7.09                 4.58            (2.51)           -55% 5.97            19%

324.22 348.30 24.08 7% All Labor FTE's 320.07 348.30 30.74 9% 315.61 1%

Key Operating Statistics
November 30, 2020

Month Ending Year to Date

7



Revenue by Financial Class
November 30, 2020

Month Medicare Medicaid Commercial Insurance Self Pay and Other Total
JAN 33.3% 32.3% 27.1% 7.4% 100.0%
FEB 33.6% 30.5% 27.7% 8.1% 100.0%
MAR 27.9% 32.0% 31.7% 8.4% 100.0%
APR 28.1% 31.3% 29.7% 10.8% 100.0%
MAY 31.9% 29.3% 28.1% 10.6% 100.0%
JUN 26.0% 32.3% 30.0% 11.7% 100.0%
JUL 25.8% 35.2% 31.3% 7.6% 100.0%
AUG 31.4% 31.8% 27.4% 9.4% 100.0%
SEPT 28.5% 32.9% 27.8% 10.8% 100.0%
OCT 29.6% 33.1% 28.4% 9.0% 100.0%
NOV 30.2% 31.4% 30.1% 8.3% 100.0%
DEC      

YTD 2020 29.7% 32.1% 29.0% 9.2% 100.0%
2019 31.5% 31.8% 28.6% 8.1% 100.0%

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC YTD
2020

2019

2020 Gross Revenue by Financial Class

 Medicare  Medicaid  Commercial Insurance  Self Pay and Other

8



Net Revenue by Financial Class
November 30, 2020

Month Medicare Medicaid Commercial Insurance Self Pay and Other Total
JAN 28.2% 23.9% 44.7% 3.2% 100.0%
FEB 25.2% 20.8% 44.1% 9.8% 100.0%
MAR 24.4% 24.3% 44.6% 6.8% 100.0%
APR 29.2% 24.9% 41.2% 4.7% 100.0%
MAY 34.2% 15.3% 36.9% 13.5% 100.0%
JUN 18.4% 25.8% 40.0% 15.8% 100.0%
JUL 20.6% 31.0% 45.8% 2.6% 100.0%
AUG 33.8% 18.4% 34.0% 13.7% 100.0%
SEPT 15.9% 26.6% 37.3% 20.2% 100.0%
OCT 25.9% 24.9% 39.2% 10.1% 100.0%
NOV 31.3% 20.4% 39.2% 9.1% 100.0%
DEC      

YTD 2020 25.0% 23.6% 40.4% 11.0% 100.0%
2019 29.4% 21.7% 38.8% 10.2% 100.0%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC YTD 2020

2020 Net Revenue by Financial Class

 Medicare  Medicaid  Commercial Insurance  Self Pay and Other

9



Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20
Gross Patient Services Revenue

Inpatient 2,617,549$      2,864,852$      2,864,636$      3,010,011$      2,635,344$    2,206,745$    2,520,235$    3,042,365$    3,178,603$    2,759,767$    2,669,699$    2,710,596$    3,168,278$    
Outpatient 8,716,943        10,233,791      10,071,001      9,445,153        8,882,599      5,357,211      6,692,398      9,162,181      9,501,319      10,082,833    9,721,811      10,633,377    10,188,162    

Total Gross Patient Services Revenue 11,334,492      13,098,643      12,935,637      12,455,164      11,517,943    7,563,956      9,212,633      12,204,546    12,679,922    12,842,600    12,391,510    13,343,973    13,356,440    

Deductions from Revenue 59% 52% 59% 61% 57% 50% 54% 57% 60% 62% 54% 57% 63%

Contractual Allowances
Medicare 2,234,020        2,611,913        2,632,393        2,720,808        1,772,267      995,183         1,611,449      2,019,352      2,123,486      2,764,334      1,817,288      2,609,904      2,496,898      
Medicaid 3,351,182        2,593,535        2,462,158        2,881,363        2,364,561      2,088,300      1,938,730      2,427,413      3,115,446      2,843,908      2,528,387      3,138,526      3,231,634      
Negotiated Rates 490,384            1,053,995        1,970,832        1,535,802        1,559,890      363,732         1,146,693      1,738,176      1,625,968      1,471,853      1,799,267      1,722,466      1,865,577      
Other Adjustments 12,337              (62,054)             152,100            143,288            395,710         40,602            (68,462)          265,524         291,657         496,025         (362,398)        161,413         109,178         

Gross Contractual Allowances 6,087,923        6,197,389        7,217,483        7,281,261        6,092,428      3,487,817      4,628,410      6,450,465      7,156,557      7,576,120      5,782,544      7,632,309      7,703,287      
Charity Care 182,296            34,095              70,465              207,726            147,685         40,927            49,448            149,222         337,712         77,110            79,533            208,648         141,999         
Bad Debt 442,390            514,437            366,493            154,253            325,725         268,555         255,700         326,276         138,652         256,521         836,019         (270,517)        537,735         

Total Deductions From Revenue 6,712,609        6,745,921        7,654,441        7,643,240        6,565,838      3,797,299      4,933,558      6,925,963      7,632,921      7,909,751      6,698,096      7,570,440      8,383,021      

Net Patient Services Revenue 4,621,883        6,352,722        5,281,196        4,811,924        4,952,105      3,766,657      4,279,075      5,278,583      5,047,001      4,932,849      5,693,414      5,773,533      4,973,419      

COVID Grant Revenue 2,210,384      1,325,149      1,481,428      205,582         (1,407,088)     1,300,000      -                   (3,369,462)     
Other Operating Revenue 144,372            60,565              54,446              48,156              79,111            49,953            64,385            58,859            61,424            125,401         132,732         55,526            124,915         

Net Revenue 4,766,255        6,413,287        5,335,642        4,860,080        5,031,216      6,026,994      5,668,609      6,818,870      5,314,007      3,651,162      3,651,162      5,829,059      1,728,872      

Operating Expenses
Salaries 2,333,751        2,596,017        2,390,097        2,319,195        2,438,079      2,243,147      2,292,652      2,362,460      2,472,695      2,378,145      2,802,563      2,470,293      2,438,217      
Benefits 503,958            765,786            577,012            555,392            440,583         739,833         604,325         419,678         578,549         396,087         632,020         426,890         653,867         
Purchased Labor 246,218            268,266            249,096            283,557            329,407         261,699         135,882         166,436         169,347         176,412         277,138         208,521         221,005         

Sub-Total Labor Costs 3,083,927        3,630,069        3,216,205        3,158,144        3,208,069      3,244,679      3,032,859      2,948,574      3,220,591      2,950,644      3,711,721      3,105,704      3,313,089      

Professional Fees - Physicians 352,355            377,019            389,778            279,808            267,635         419,725         288,245         326,140         320,182         393,900         356,882         299,010         371,858         
Professional Fees - Other 57,445              37,367              43,960              58,785              19,051            93,438            49,659            64,682            37,919            (112,693)        17,314            32,791            49,263            
Supplies 764,707            622,645            619,449            675,545            762,215         527,615         481,223         516,166         689,329         720,675         901,242         774,372         689,856         
Purchased Services - Utilities 48,996              37,860              43,249              43,969              40,757            31,315            46,337            46,325            59,031            52,110            57,118            42,281            36,935            
Purchased Services - Other 314,069            269,828            261,428            230,546            359,733         222,165         228,231         255,449         279,915         352,210         166,143         347,336         375,342         
Rentals & Leases 168,019            186,792            194,404            170,987            167,981         152,417         153,829         180,783         176,162         168,937         172,722         180,140         154,333         
Insurance License & Taxes 52,025              63,642              60,430              99,269              87,383            85,150            58,860            36,853            39,883            91,582            77,705            116,220         74,031            
Depreciation & Amortization 222,109            224,314            222,577            227,538            224,010         228,367         229,348         231,347         232,391         232,273         232,977         232,435         232,571         
Other Operating Expenses 135,294            40,759              104,447            103,657            107,679         92,318            92,182            (21,863)          114,301         56,152            128,247         38,681            212,650         

Sub-Total Non-Labor Expenses 2,115,019        1,860,226        1,939,722        1,890,104        2,036,444      1,852,510      1,627,914      1,635,882      1,949,113      1,955,146      2,110,350      2,063,266      2,196,839      

Total Operating Expenses 5,198,946        5,490,295        5,155,927        5,048,248        5,244,513      5,097,189      4,660,773      4,584,456      5,169,704      4,905,790      5,822,071      5,168,970      5,509,928      

Operating Income (Loss) (432,691)          922,992            179,715            (188,168)          (213,297)        929,805         1,007,836      2,234,414      144,303         (1,254,628)     1,304,075      660,089         (3,781,056)     

Non Operating Income 
Tax Revenue 69,785              69,205              71,840              65,599              77,314            73,881            69,589            70,784            72,711            71,007            69,246            68,109            75,013            
Investment Income 21,943              24,574              22,527              22,036              19,425            18,000            12,391            12,242            3,385              2,600              2,542              55,157            687                  
Interest Expense (34,166)             (33,322)             (32,996)             (19,892)             (33,218)          (35,750)          (32,897)          (35,496)          (37,969)          (42,518)          (22,420)          (43,094)          (32,052)          
Other Non Operating Income (Expense) 14,420              -                     (222)                  -                     -                   500                  13,684            (57,915)          -                   4,200              -                   -                   -                   

Total Non Operating Income 71,982              60,457              61,149              67,743              63,521            56,631            62,767            (10,385)          38,127            35,289            49,368            80,172            43,648            

Net Income (Loss) (360,709)$        983,449$         240,864$         (120,425)$        (149,776)$      986,436$       1,070,603$    2,224,029$    182,430$       (1,219,339)$  1,353,443$    740,261$       (3,737,408)$  

Total Margin -7.5% 15.2% 4.5% -2.4% -2.9% 16.2% 18.7% 32.7% 3.4% -33.1% 36.6% 12.5% -210.9%
Margin (Non Operating Income) -9.1% 14.4% 3.4% -3.9% -4.2% 15.4% 17.8% 32.8% 2.7% -34.4% 35.7% 11.3% -218.7%
Salaries as a % of Net Revenue 49.0% 40.5% 44.8% 47.7% 48.5% 37.2% 40.4% 34.6% 46.5% 65.1% 76.8% 42.4% 141.0%
Labor as a % of Net Revenue 64.7% 56.6% 60.3% 65.0% 63.8% 53.8% 53.5% 43.2% 60.6% 80.8% 101.7% 53.3% 191.6%
Operating Expense change from prior month 3% 6% -6% -2% 4% -3% -9% -2% 13% -5% 13% 0% 12%
Gross Revenue change from prior month -11% 16% -1% -4% -8% -34% 22% 32% 4% 1% -2% 5% 4%
Net Revenue change from prior month -9% 35% -17% -9% 4% 20% -6% 20% -22% -31% -31% 10% -53%

Statement of Operations 13-month Trend

10



 -

 2,000,000

 4,000,000

 6,000,000

 8,000,000

 10,000,000

 12,000,000

 14,000,000

 16,000,000

Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20
Total Gross Patient Services Revenue Gross Contractual Allowances Total Deductions From Revenue

Net Patient Services Revenue Sub-Total Labor Costs Total Operating Expenses

11



2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 % Change 30 60 90 120 150 Over 180
January 12,362,446   13,660,199  16,931,510  19,428,531   26,540,403   37% 2016 6,520,093     1,617,498   980,460       661,863      1,036,945   2,972,389   13,789,248          
February 14,494,028   14,529,841  16,911,324  19,146,130   28,567,785   49% 2017 7,395,478     2,232,801   1,214,281   809,589      1,345,070   3,295,117   16,292,336          
March 20,600,695   15,115,376  14,989,166  19,513,147   26,130,696   34% 2018 11,087,380  1,828,183   1,102,758   623,406      885,033       1,847,253   17,374,013          
April 20,487,742   15,752,955  15,852,894  19,692,139   22,350,961   14% 2019 14,436,537  3,005,610   1,759,420   1,036,724  1,960,955   3,455,779   25,655,024          
May 19,464,558   15,131,907  16,812,980  19,455,887   23,319,876   20% 2020 15,734,042  2,824,337   1,390,770   1,324,068  1,889,868   4,699,389   27,862,474          
June 17,028,895   15,446,995  16,291,895  21,223,053   25,197,275   19%
July 16,275,033   15,918,959  15,979,415  20,206,074   25,943,825   28%
August 15,812,556   17,412,422  16,633,907  20,028,246   26,144,421   31% 2016 47% 12% 7% 5% 8% 22% 100%
September 14,455,924   17,547,651  17,129,789  23,681,156   25,640,562   8% 2017 45% 14% 7% 5% 8% 20% 100%
October 13,571,867   15,948,473  16,950,256  25,724,222   26,432,788   3% 2018 64% 11% 6% 4% 5% 11% 100%
November 13,789,248   16,292,336  17,374,013  25,655,024   27,862,474   9% 2019 56% 12% 7% 4% 8% 13% 100%
December 13,844,649   16,777,361  17,137,550  25,486,600   -                 2020 56% 10% 5% 5% 7% 17% 100%

AR Age Balance Comparative

AR Percentage of Total Balance

AR Balance Trend

 -

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

 30,000,000

AR Balance Trend - Through July (2018, 2019, 2020)

 -

 2,000,000

 4,000,000

 6,000,000

 8,000,000

 10,000,000

 12,000,000

 14,000,000

 16,000,000

 18,000,000

30 60 90 120 150 Over 180

AR Age Comparative (2018, 2019, 2020)

2018

2019

2020

12



Financial Operations
November 30, 2020

YTD 2019 YTD 2020  YTD Budget 2020
Utilization
Admissions 904                               928                               914                               
Adjusted Admissions 3,961                            3,936                            4,242                            
Average Daily Census 6.6                                6.4                                6.8                                
Adjusted Occupied Beds 29.0                              27.3                              31.5                              
Average Length of Stay (days) 2.5                                2.3                                2.5                                
Outpatient Revenue % 77.2% 76.4% 78.5%
Total Yield (net patient revenue) 88.2% 83.6% 105.7%
Hospital Case Mix Index TBD 0.99                              1.00                              
Financial Performance ($000)
Net Patient Revenue 52,655                          54,671                          58,123                          
Total Operating Revenue 54,094                          57,270                          59,111                          
Total Operating Expense 52,634                          56,247                          55,683                          
Income (Loss) from Operations 1,460                            1,023                            3,428                            
Excess of Revenue Over Expenses 2,266                            1,571                            4,078                            
EBIDA (Operating Cash Flow) 3,679                            3,549                            5,921                            
Additions to Property, Plant, and Equipment 6,382                            3,062                            684                               
Balance Sheet ($000)
Unrestricted Cash and Investments 723                               10,246                          3,915                            
Accounts Receivable (gross) 25,655                          27,862                          17,104                          
Net Fixed Assets 15,937                          15,750                          12,758                          
Current and Long-Term Liabilities (excluding LT debt) 8,395                            18,559                          5,413                            
Long-Term Debt 11,782                          10,966                          6,441                            
Total Liabilities 20,177                          29,525                          11,854                          
Net Worth 28,741                          31,194                          29,769                          
Key Ratios
Operating Margin (%) 2.7% 1.8% 5.8%
Excess Margin (%) 4.2% 2.8% 6.9%
Operating EBIDA Margin (Operating Cash Flow) 6.8% 6.2% 10.0%
Average Expense per Adjusted Patient Days 3,721                            2,858                            2,941                            
Net Accounts Receivable (days) 63.33                            63.22                            57.95                            
Current Ratio (x) 1.63                              1.30                              1.55                              
Cash on Hand (days) 117.23                          183.42                          120.39                          
Cushion Ratio (x) 54.78                            79.81                            53.80                            
Return on Equity (%) 7.88% 5.04% 13.33%
Capital Spending Ratio 1.46                              1.34                              5.13                              
Average Age of Plant (Years) 10.66                            10.25                            10.84                            
Debt Service 4.76                              2.89                              4.58                              
Debt-to-Capitalization (%) 31% 29% 27.07%
Patient Revenue Sources by Gross Revenue (%)
Medicare 31.5% 29.7% 31.5%
Medicaid 31.8% 32.1% 31.7%
Commercial Insurance 28.6% 29.0% 28.7%
Self-pay and Other 8.1% 9.2% 8.1%
Labor Metrics
Productive FTE's (incl contract labor) 281.56                          283.94                          300.11                          
Total FTE's (incl contract labor) 315.61                          320.07                          348.30                          
Labor Cost (incl benefits) per FTE - Annualized 103,241.87                  109,695.62                  98,865.41                    
Labor Cost (incl benefits) as a % of Net Operating Revenue 60.2% 61.3% 58.3%
Net Operating Revenue per FTE 171,394.94                  178,930.81                  169,713.64                  
Operating Expense per FTE 166,768.68                  175,734.35                  159,871.56                  
Contacts:
David Rollins       Chief Financial Officer       (509) 786-6605
Stephanie Titus   Director of Finance             (509) 786-5530

13



Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT T

















































Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT V

















Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT W











Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT X









Organization Purpose  Award  Date Rec'd

 Amount
Recognized
in FY2020

 Balance
Remaining  Repayment Other Notes

Greater Columbia Accountability of
Health

Telehealth Application Funding for relief
during the COVID19 crisis 6,000$ 4/3/2020 6,000$ -$ -$ Received for initial telehealth expenditures

HHS Provider Relief Payment 760,801$ 4/10/2020 -$ -$ 760,801$ CARES Act: Stimulus for highly effected areas

CMS Medicare Advanced Benefits Advance of Medicare Payments 6,591,980$ 4/21/2020 -$ -$ 6,591,980$
Three months worth of Medicare payments
advanced to PMH. REPAID 11/30/2020

HHS Provider Relief Payment 271,197$ 4/24/2020 -$ -$ 271,197$ CARES Act: Stimulus for highly effected areas
US Bank SBA Economic Injury Disaster
Loan (EIDL) Payroll Protection Forgiveness Loan 10,000$ 4/30/2020 10,000$ -$ -$ US Bank SBA grant deposited into our account.

US Bank SBA Payroll Protection Program
Loan (PPPL) Payroll Protection Forgiveness Loan 6,350,235$ 5/4/2020 -$ 6,350,235$ -$

Equivalent to 2.5 months worth of Payroll
expenses and forgiveable based upon
maintaining Payroll expenses at historical levels.
Unlikely to be forgiven by the end of the year.
Recognize in 2021.

HHS
CARES Provider Relief Fund - Rural
Allocation 4,170,732$ 5/6/2020 -$ -$ 4,170,732$

Each CAH will receive at least $1,000,000 with
the average CAH/Rural Hospital to receive
$4,000,000 and each Rural Health Clinic to
receive at least $100,000 with the average to be
about $160,000.  We received $4,170,732.
NARHC.ORG (National Association of Rural
Health Clinics)

HHS RHC COVID-19 Testing Program 49,461$ 5/20/2020 49,461$ -$ -$
HHS:  Rural Health Clinic COVID-19 Testing
Program

WSHA ASPR PPE purchase from WSHA 20,000$ 5/21/2020 20,000$ -$ -$
Grant funds processed thru WSHA and spent on
PPE for staff.

Medicaid SRDSH SRDSH reallocation of addt'l funds 29,382$ 5/22/2020 29,382$ 0$

The SRDSH amount that is funded by the HSNA
fund, is set by RCW at $1,909,000, and the
federal matching funds has historically been
50%. Due to the current COVID-19 pandemic,
congress passed the CARES ACT, which increase
the federal matching percentage to 56.2%
effective 1/1/2020. 

HHS RHC COVID-19 Testing Program 49,461$ 6/9/2020 49,461$ -$ -$
HHS:  Rural Health Clinic COVID-19 Testing
Program

HHS RHC COVID-19 Testing Program 150,680$ 6/16/2020 150,680$ -$ -$
HHS:  Critical Access Hospital COVID-19 Testing
Program

HHS Provider Relief Payment 103,253$ 6/25/2020 103,253$ -$ -$ CARES Act: Stimulus for highly effected areas

HHS Provider Relief Payment 1,300,000$ 7/20/2020 1,300,000$ -$
CARES Act: Provider Relief Fund ($100,000 per
RHC; $1,000,000 for CAH)

HRSA (WA DOH) SHIP Grant Hospital COVID Funding 83,136$ 7/27/2020 83,136$ -$ -$ HRSA Rural Hospital SHIP Grant COVID Funding

Molina PCP Stabilization Payment 25,434$ 8/4/2020 25,434$ -$ -$
Molina Healthcare provided COVID payments to
providers

(80,816)$
Funds categorized on Income Statement in
categories other than COVID Relief

Totals 19,971,754$ 1,745,993$ 6,350,235$ 11,794,710$
8,096,228$

FINAL ATT _ Y  _ COVID Relief Funds v11.30.2020 12/11/2020

Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT Y



Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT Z





PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS POLICY AND PROCEDURE

DEPARTMENT: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PAGE 1 OF 2 PAGES(S)

REGARDING: BOARD EVALUATION NUMBER:   100.0005

DEPARTMENTS
AFFECTED: BOARD OF COMMISIONERS AMENDED: 6-28-18

EFECTIVE DATE: 4-27-17 REVIEWED: 6-28-18

POLICY
Prosser Memorial Health (PMH) seeks to continually improve the performance of the
Board of Commissioners through periodic evaluation of Board performance and self-
evaluation of individual Commissioners. It is the policy of the Board to review its
performance annually and to utilize the findings of the evaluation to initiate changes
for improving future performance.

IMPLEMENTATION
A. Overall Board Performance: The Board of Commissioners will establish, as part of

PMH’s annual planning efforts during October-December, several overall goals for
itself and each committee of the Board. The Board will establish their goals, in
association with the CEO.

B. Commissioner Self-Evaluation:   Each Commissioner will complete a confidential
Board of Commissioners survey annually. The format of the evaluation form may
vary. However, the following content areas will be included:

1. Effectiveness in ensuring that the organization delivers high-quality
medical care through a comprehensive quality management program;

2. Effectiveness in protecting PMH’s Mission, Vision, Values, and assets;
3. Effectiveness in establishing organizational goals and policies;
4. Effectiveness in assuring current and long-range financial viability;
5. Effectiveness in selecting, supporting, evaluating, and compensating a

Chief Executive Officer;
6. Effectiveness in maintaining positive relationships with the Medical

Staff, employees, volunteers, and the community; and

Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT AA



7. Effectiveness of managing the Board’s organization and development.

These surveys will be tabulated, in confidence, by the CEO and Chairman of the Board.
A summary of the survey results will be presented to the Board in January.

C. Annual Board Performance Review: The Board will conduct an Annual Board
Performance Review in November for the purpose of evaluating the overall
performance of the Board, review a summary of the Board of Commissioners’
surveys, agree on changes needed to improve the performance of the Board as a
whole, and utilize the input from individual Commissioners to develop a Board
Action Plan which will assist them to improve the operation of PMH and the Board.

RESPONSIBILTY
The responsibility for implementing the Board evaluation is assigned to the Board
Chair.



PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS POLICY AND PROCEDURE

DEPARTMENT: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PAGE 1 OF 2 PAGES(S)

REGARDING: CONFIDENTIALITY NUMBER:  100.0006

DEPARTMENTS
AFFECTED: ALL AMENDED: 6-28-18

EFECTIVE DATE: 4-27-17 REVIEWED: 6-28-18

PURPOSE
This shall address patients, providers, and Prosser Memorial Health (PMH) employees,
volunteers, and Board members regarding their discussion of patient, employee, and
PMH information outside of the realm of job activities.

POLICY
The employees, volunteers, and Board members of PMH have an ethical and legal
responsibility to keep all information regarding any patient, provider, employee, or
Hospital operations confidential unless disclosure is permitted by law or by the
authority of the affected person. Confidential information includes any information
within any data collection system.

IMPLEMENTATION
A. Confidential information is:

1. Not to be disclosed to others unless and only to the extent this disclosure is
necessary for one to perform a job function as dated in the job description or
procedure or to assure adequate patient care.

2. Not to be discussed with family, friends, acquaintances, or other patients.
3. Not to be copied or otherwise recorded unless required as part of one’s job.

B. Any information about a patient’s care or treatment, or personal data is not to
be discussed with anyone other than those directly responsible for that patient’s
care and treatment, and then only the minimum necessary information will be

made available, all consistent with the Health Insurance Portability and

Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT BB



Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), HIPAA Security Rule (45 CFR §164.302 – 318),
and applicable state law.

C. A patient’s medical information is not to be discussed outside the realm of patient
care unless the patient’s written consent has been
obtained.

D. Demographic information such as an individual’s name, his/her general condition,
and his/her location in the facility is considered confidential unless the patient
requests that the information be given to the public.

E. Any information that reveals the nature of the diagnosis is considered
confidential.

F. Any diagnoses, procedures, and/or treatments are considered confidential medical
information and are only to be released with written authorization from the
patient.

G. Requests for information concerning present or former employees are to be
referred to Human Resources.

H. Requests for confidential information concerning patients, not addressed in
departmental policies, and must be referred to the Medical Records /HIM
Department.

I. Any violation of this policy by an employer, volunteer, or Board member may be
cause for immediate dismissal of duties.

J. No oral or written information about the discussion conducted or documents
presented during a closed session of the Board of Commissioners may be disclosed
by any person attending said meetings to any third party except as permitted by
Prosser Memorial Health Board Policy.

K. All employees, volunteers, and Board members are to sign a non-Disclosure
Agreement annually.



PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS POLICY AND PROCEDURE

DEPARTMENT: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PAGE 1 OF 4 PAGE(S)

REGARDING: DESIGNATION OF PRIVACY OFFICERS NUMBER: 100.0007
(HIPAA)

DEPARTMENTS
AFFECTED: ALL AMENDED: 6-28-18

EFECTIVE DATE: 4-24-17 REVIEWED: 6-28-18

PURPOSE
Prosser Memorial Health (PMH) is committed to ensuring the privacy and security of
patient health information. In order to manage the facilitation and implementation of
activities related to the privacy and security of protected health information, PMH will
appoint and maintain internal Privacy Officer and Security Officer positions. The
Privacy Officer shall be responsible for the development and maintenance of all
HIPAA-related privacy policies and procedures and will establish and maintain an
ongoing staff education program. The Security Officer will be responsible for the
development and maintenance of a security awareness training program.

POLICY
Prosser Memorial Health will designate a HIPAA Privacy Officer and a HIPAA Security
Officer responsible for the oversight of the policies and procedures regarding the
privacy of protected health information.

HIPAA PRIVACY OFFICER
The Director of Health Information Management (HIM) shall be the HIPAA Privacy
Officer. The HIPAA Privacy Officer shall:

A. Develop and maintain HIPAA privacy policies and procedures to:
1. Provide training of PMH employees working within covered components, as

necessary, to carry out their respective functions, in accordance with 45 C.F.R.

Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT CC 



164.530(b) and documentation of such training.
2. Ensure appropriate administrative, technical, and physical safeguards are in

place to protect protected health information from unauthorized use or
inadvertent disclosure to persons other than the intended recipient.

3. Assist in the identification of business associates.
4. Establish and enforce limitations on access to protected health information.
5. Provide conditions for use and disclosure of protected health information.
6. Maintain individual rights regarding protected health information.
7. Provide a process for complaints concerning HIPAA policies and procedures, or

covered components’ compliance with HIPAA policies and procedures, or other
requirements under HIPAA privacy regulations.

8. Mitigate for any use or disclosure of protected health information that is in
violation of the HIPAA privacy policies and procedures.

9. Comply with amendments or additions to the HIPAA privacy regulations.
B. Establish and enforce sanctions for employees who fail to comply with HIPAA

privacy policies and procedures. Sanctions will be appropriate to the nature of the
violation and will not apply to whistleblower activities, or to complaints or
investigations.

C. No covered component or employees of PMH may intimidate, threaten, coerce,
discriminate against, or take other retaliatory action against any individual for the
exercise by the individual of any right under, or for participation by the individual
in any process established by the HIPAA privacy regulations.

D.    No covered component or employees of PMH may require any individual to waive
his or her right to file a complaint with the Secretary of the United States
Department of Health and Human Services as a condition of the provision of
treatment, payment, enrollment in a health plan, or eligibility for benefits.

HIPAA SECURITY OFFICER
The Director of Information Services/Chief Information Officer (CIO) shall be the HIPAA
Security officer.

The HIPAA Security Officer must ensure the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of
all electronically protected health information created, received, maintained, or
transmitted by PMH; protect against any reasonably anticipated threats or hazards to
the security or integrity of such information; protect against any reasonably
anticipated uses or disclosures of such information that are not permitted under the



HIPAA privacy regulations; and ensure compliance by PMH’s workforce. To accomplish
these responsibilities, the HIPAA Security Officer shall:

A. Develop and maintain HIPAA security policies and procedures to:
1.   Prevent, detect, contain, and correct security violations.
2.   Ensure that all members of the workforce have appropriate, access to

electronically protected health information.
3.   Prevent access to electronically protected health information by those

workforce members who do not have authority under the HIPAA privacy
regulations.

4. Address security incidents.
5. Respond to emergencies or other occurrences such as fire, vandalism, system

failure, and natural disasters that damage systems that contain electronically
protected health information.

6. Create and maintain retrievable exact copies of electronically protected health
information and to restore any loss of data.

7. Enable continuation of critical business processes for protection of security of
electronically protected health information while operating in emergency
mode.

8. Limit physical access to its electronic information systems and the facility or
facilities in which they are housed, while ensuring that properly authorized
access  is allowed.

9. Specify the proper functions to be performed, the manner in which those
functions are to be performed, and the physical attributes of the surroundings
of a specific workstation or class of workstation that can access electronically
protected health information.

10. Govern the receipt and removal of hardware and electronic media that contains
electronically protected health information.

11. Address the final disposition of electronically protected health information,
and/or the hardware or electronic media in which it is stored.

12. Removal of electronically protected health information from electronic media
before the media are made available for re-use.

13. Protect electronically protected health information from improper alteration or
destruction.

14. Verify that a person or entity seeking access to electronically protected health
information is the one claimed.

15. Comply with amendments or additions to the HIPAA security standards.



B. Implement a security awareness and training program for all members of the PMH
workforce.

C. Perform a periodic technical and non-technical evaluation, based initially upon the
HIPAA security standards and subsequently, in response to environmental and
operational changes affecting the security of electronically protected health
information that establishes the extent to which the PMH security policies and
procedures meet the requirements of the HIPAA security standards.

D. Implement hardware, software, and/or procedural mechanisms that record and
examine activity in information systems that contain or use electronically
protected health information.

E. Implement technical security measures to guard against unauthorized access to
electronically protected health information that is being transmitted over an
electronic communications network.

F. Establish and enforce sanctions for employees who fail to comply with the HIPAA
security policies and procedures. Sanctions will be appropriate to the nature of the
violation and will not apply to whistleblower activities, nor to complaints or
investigations.



PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS POLICY AND PROCEDURE

DEPARTMENT: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PAGE 1 OF 2 PAGE(S)

REGARDING: LICENSURE AND ACCREDITATION NUMBER: 100.0008
REQUIREMENTS

DEPARTMENTS:
AFFECTED: ALL AMENDED: 6-28-18

EFECTIVE DATE: 4-27-17 REVIEWED: 6-28-18

POLICY
Prosser Memorial Health (PMH) will comply with all of the licensure and/or
accreditation requirements of all regulatory agencies (e.g. CMS, State of Washington).

IMPLEMENTATION
A.   PMH will meet all requirements for timely submission of data and information to

all regulatory agencies.
B.   PMH will provide accurate information throughout the accreditation process.
C.   PMH will report any changes in the information provided in the application for

license accreditation and any changes made between surveys.
1. Changes in ownership, control, location, capacity, or services offered will be

reported to the regulatory agencies within 30 days of their taking effect.
D.   PMH will permit surveys at the regulatory agency’s discretion.
E.    PMH will select and use core performance measure sets and/or non-core

performance measures from among those available through its listed performance
measurement system.

F.    PMH will allow the regulatory agencies to review the results of external evaluation
from publicly recognized bodies such as licensing, examining, reviewing, and/or
planning bodies.

G.   PMH accurately represents its licensure accreditation status and the programs
and services to which the licensure accreditation applies.

Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT DD



H.   PMH notifies the public it serves about how to contact PMH management and the
regulatory agencies to report concerns about patient safety and quality.

I. Any individual who provides care, treatment, and services can report concerns
about safety or the quality of care to the regulatory agencies without retaliatory
action from PMH.

J.   PMH will be truthful and accurate when describing information in its Quality Report
to the public.



C:\Users\kmellema\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\DUCDFCCP\PMH EOC Report - 2020.docx                                                                                  Page 1 
of 9 

                                      
 
 
 
 
 
 

Environment of Care Report - 2020 
 
Introduction 
 
Environment of Care (EOC) management plans encompass seven areas of the healthcare environment: 
 

• Emergency Preparedness 

• Hazardous Materials  

• Life Safety  

• Patient Technologies   

• Safety & Accident Prevention  

• Security   

• Utilities     
 

EOC plans and accompanying policies and procedures are reviewed annually by the Director of Support 
Services and revised as needed to reflect current regulatory standards and conditions in District facilities. The 
annual review process was completed on June 5, 2020. Copies of updated plans, policies and procedures 
were distributed to department directors who are responsible for updating their department’s Safety & EOC 
manual. Safety & EOC Manuals are to be available to PMH staff at all times while they are on duty. Current 
EOC plans, policies and procedures are also available on The PMH intranet under the “Safety” tab along with a 
wealth of safety related resources and materials.  
 
EOC Plan Summaries 
 
Emergency Preparedness Management Plan  
 

Objectives 
 
This program describes how the organization will ensure an effective response to disasters or emergencies 
affecting the EOC. This objective remains valid and appropriate. 
 
Scope: 
 

The general scope of the plan remained the same for 2020, addressing emergency management needs at the 
hospital and its clinics.  
 
Performance: 
 

• Due to the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic early in the year, EPC meetings transitioned from in person 
meetings to online meetings. Once the transition was complete, the EPC met regularly with good 
attendance and was effective in managing aspects of this program.   
 

• The EPC conducted the annual comprehensive Hazard Vulnerability Analysis (HVA) on February 10, 2020 
for our region and service area. The HVA identified the areas of highest risk to include wildfires, severe 
winter storms and utility failures. Policies and procedures currently in place address these and other areas 
of risk and continue to be valid.  

 

Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT EE



C:\Users\kmellema\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\DUCDFCCP\PMH EOC Report - 2020.docx                                                                                  Page 2 
of 9 

• In 2020, the EPC had planned to work on developing a tabletop exercise based on the new Evacuation and 
Shelter in Place policy and procedure that was approved by the EPC and administration 2019. Due to 
restrictions related to the pandemic, work on this front was postponed until such time that an exercise can 
be held in with players all in the same room.  
 

• Regional integration of emergency preparedness planning continues through regular collaboration with the 
Benton Franklin Health District Emergency Response Division and the eastern Washington Regional 
Emergency and Disaster (REDi) Healthcare Coalition.  

 

• Key PMH staff members participated (and continue to participate) in daily readiness surveys, weekly phone 
and online status and planning meetings related to COVID-19 with all its regional partners. These partners 
include: 

 

o Healthcare coalitions 
o Hospitals 
o Long term care & nursing homes 
o Emergency management agencies 
o Health Districts 
o EMS providers 
o Law enforcement agencies   
o Fire Districts with EMS 

 

• PMH did not exercise its Emergency Preparedness Plan in 2020. Instead, PMH established a COVID-19 
Task Force (CTF) that met regularly and dealt with day to day operations related to the real time pandemic 
emergency. Although the EPC was not directly involved in COVID-19 response planning, many members 
of the EPC sit on the CTF. CTF meetings will continue to be held in 2021 and will continue until such time 
that they are no longer required.  

 

• In collaboration with the Human Resources (HR) department, PMH employees and its contracted staff 
were assigned Active Shooter and annual Emergency Preparedness training though the online 
HealthStream® Learning Center. Course completion rate to date: 

 

• Active Shooter 91% (Due 7-1- 2020, assigned to PMH & Rehab Visions staff only) 

• Emergency Preparedness 42% (Due 12-31-2020, assigned to PMH staff and all contracted 

employees) 
 

The Emergency Preparedness training course completion rate is for PMH employees only is much 

higher than it would seem (86% to date). The contracted employee completion rate for 192 assigned 

students is currently 7.29%, bringing our overall completion rate way down. It is known that the list of 

contracted employees contains names of people whom very rarely or no longer work at PMH. The EPC 

plans to work with the HR department in 2021 on filtering the list to include active staff only so that 

realistic statistics may be achieved.  
 

Effectiveness: 
 

• The ability to respond to mass casualty incidents was enhanced by staff training, support and participation 
of local and regional agencies and emergency preparedness equipment obtained through preparedness 
grants.  

 

• New Employee Orientation and annual refresher training on Emergency Preparedness are considered 
adequate based on staff knowledge assessed during departmental safety surveys.  

 

2021 Work Plan 
 

• Continue working with regional partners on COVID-19 related activities and vaccine distribution.  

• Continue and enhance our relationships with regional agencies and local municipalities. 

• Actively participate in regional and local drills and exercises as they become available.  

• Continue to monitor and track employee participation in the emergency preparedness training program. 



C:\Users\kmellema\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\DUCDFCCP\PMH EOC Report - 2020.docx                                                                                  Page 3 
of 9 

• Enhance the effective use of the Everbridge® mass communication system and/or research a more user-
friendly system.  

• Create an exercise based on the evacuation and shelter in place policy and procedures. 

• Work with the HR department on updating the contracted employee list.  
 

Hazardous Materials & Waste Management Plan 
 

Objective: 
 

This plan describes how the organization will maintain a program to safely control hazardous materials and 
waste. These objectives remain valid and appropriate. 
 

Scope: 
 

• The overall scope of the plan did not change and continues to apply to current industry standards. 
 

• There have been no significant changes in quantities or types of chemicals used in clinical or support 
operations, and the program continued unchanged in 2020. 

 

Performance: 
 

• Management and timely removal of hazardous wastes, i.e. universal, medical and chemical has been 
effective in keeping District operations running smoothly. 
 

• The recycling program continues to be effective in preventing certain types of wastes from entering our 
waste stream and out of landfills. The recycling program includes: 

 

o used fluorescent and HID lamps 
o mercury containing devices,  
o magnetic lighting ballasts,  
o chargeable and non-rechargeable batteries,  
o cardboard 
o scrap metal 

 
• Regulated medical waste (RMW) volumes decreased in 2020. The average monthly generation in 2019 

was 170.29 cubic feet. To date in 2020, the average monthly generation rate is 101.33 cubic feet. This 
decrease in generation is attributed to the lag of clinic utilization and surgeries related to COVID-19 and 
education of staff on the on the proper use of this waste stream. Efforts to cap or reduce medical waste 
generation will continue into 2021.  
 

• The Safety Officer remains responsible for the hazardous materials and waste program and has been a 
reliable and effective resource for directors and staff when needed. 
 

• In 2021, PMH will begin using mitomycin (a chemotherapeutic agent) during certain surgical procedures. 
Waste related to this agent require special handling and disposal methods. PMH is currently working with 
its RMW disposal service on the addition of this new agent to our RMW stream.  

 
Effectiveness: 
 

• New Employee Orientation and annual refresher training in conjunction with training efforts as described 
above have been effective in raising staff awareness and knowledge of the Hazard Communication 
Program. Staff knowledge assessments conducted by the Safety & Environment of Care Committee 
(SEOCC) indicate an ongoing need to improve staff knowledge of medical waste handling and disposal 
protocol.  

 
2021 Work Plan 
 

• Closely monitor regulated medical waste sources, type and volumes. 



C:\Users\kmellema\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\DUCDFCCP\PMH EOC Report - 2020.docx                                                                                  Page 4 
of 9 

• Continue work in progress to monitor and report misuse of regular and medical waste receptacles.  

• Provide training materials and assistance where indicated.  

• Work with Supply Chain to identify any changes in quantity, types and volumes of disposable supplies. 

• Work with high volume users to find possible ways to reduce generation. 

• Add chemotherapeutic agent waste to the waste management program.  

 
Life Safety Management Plan 
 

Objectives: 
 

• This program describes how the organization will provide a fire-safe environment of care. This objective 
remains valid and appropriate to current standards. Elements include regular fire drills, employee training 
and knowledge assessment, and procedures to ensure continued life safety during renovations and 
construction. 

 

Scope: 
 

• The scope of this plan continues to address all required life safety needs at the hospital and other District 
facilities as applicable.  

 

• The management of the plan was enhanced by continued participation of the SEOCC. 
 
Performance: 
 

• An ongoing program for life safety systems inspection, testing, and preventive maintenance remains in 
place. All required inspections, testing and maintenance has been accomplished to date to include: 

 

o Hospital and service building fire alarm systems 
o Wet and dry fire suppression systems  
o Emergency generators 
o Emergency egress lights 
o Battery powered smoke and carbon monoxide detectors 

 

• The condition and readiness of systems and equipment is considered good based on regular checks during 
inspections and a comprehensive, documented preventive maintenance program. 

 

• Fire drills were conducted once per shift per quarter as required and documented. Areas needing 
improvement were brought to the attention of the department manager, with retraining and re-drilling 
provided as needed.  

 

• Life Safety systems preventive maintenance completion and testing statistics are included in monthly 
quality improvement reports generated by the Director of Support Services.  

 

Effectiveness: 
 

• New Employee Orientation and annual refresher training on life safety, fire extinguishers, fire alarms, and 
exit locations are considered effective based on staff knowledge assessed during fire drill and safety 
surveys.  

 

• Overall management of the Life Safety Plan has been effective and has resulted in three consecutive “zero 
findings” statements from the state Fire Marshal’s office during past federal and state surveys. PMH is 
currently several months overdue for survey, with the delay being attributed to the COVID-19 pandemic. 
The next survey is expected to occur any day now or in early 2021.   

 
2021 Work Plan 
 

• Continue to track, document and report life safety equipment and systems testing and maintenance 
activities, identify trends in noncompliance, implement corrective actions where indicated. 



C:\Users\kmellema\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\DUCDFCCP\PMH EOC Report - 2020.docx                                                                                  Page 5 
of 9 

• Raise staff awareness of proper fire and life safety practices using monthly safety newsletters and fire 
drills, especially during months with holidays when possibly hazardous decorations may be brought into our 
facilities.  

• Revise the Fire Safety Program to align with changing organizational structure and departmental needs. 

 
 
Patient Technologies Management Plan 
 

Objective: 
 

This program describes how the organization will ensure the safe and effective use of medical equipment.  
This objective remains valid and appropriate to standards. 
 

Scope: 
 

The general scope of the plan remained the same for 2020, addressing needs at the hospital and associated 
clinics.   
 
Performance: 
 

• Preventive maintenance (PM) services continued to be provided through a contractual agreement with 
Kadlec Regional Medical Center (KRMC) Clinical Engineering Department.  
 

• Scheduled preventive maintenance and unscheduled repairs and inspections were performed throughout 
the year. These activities were tracked and documented. PM completion statistics are included in monthly 
quality assurance reports.  

 

• The master biomedical equipment inventory was updated throughout the year to reflect additions to and 
deletions from the PM program.  

 

• New biomedical equipment purchased in 2020 was inspected, tested and added to the biomedical PM 
program. 

 

• Equipment identified as missing, lost or out of service were removed from the PM program.   
   
Effectiveness: 
 

The ongoing biomedical preventive maintenance program was effective in maintaining patient care equipment 
in excellent condition throughout the year. Timely and reliable response by KRMC Clinical Engineering 
personnel to requests for routine and emergency service was effective in reducing down-time and interruption 
of patient care services.  
 
2021 Work Plan: 
 

• Work with department directors on the selection and installation of new biomedical equipment. 

• Work with department directors and staff for identification of equipment that is overdue for maintenance 
or is lost, missing or out of service. 

• Continue work in progress to ensure all new medical equipment is inspected, tested and added to the 
PM program.  

 
Safety & Accident Prevention Management Plan   
 

Objective:   
 

This program describes how the organization provides a physical environment free of hazards and manages 
staff activities to reduce the risk of injuries to employees, patients, and visitors. These objectives remain valid 
and appropriate.   



C:\Users\kmellema\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\DUCDFCCP\PMH EOC Report - 2020.docx                                                                                  Page 6 
of 9 

 

Scope:   
 

• The general scope of the plan is applied organization wide and addresses both general processes for injury 
and illness prevention and reporting. 

• Priority continued to be assigned to our primary injury areas: slips/trips/falls (STF), ergonomics, and patient 
handling related incidents.    

 

Performance: 
 

• Safety management process has been satisfactory with well attended monthly meetings of the SEOCC 
receiving reports from other committees, i.e. EPC and Safe Patient Handling. The SEOCC has been 
effective in ensuring continued coordination between the seven elements of the environment of care 
program. 
 

• The PMH Safety & EOC Manual was reviewed, revised, approved and distributed with copies sent to all 
departments making it readily available to all staff. It was also placed on the PMH intranet, further 
enhancing its access. 

 

• Annual hazard assessments for personal protective equipment (PPE) were completed by all departments 
in February 2020. Hazard assessments are posted on the PMH intranet for easy access by all staff.  

 

• Annual Respiratory Protection training was conducted in 2020. Current course completion rate is 63% with 
a due date of 12-31-2020.  

 

• A new category was added to the environmental rounds (ER) survey form in 2020 to address workplace 
security. Staff comments and concerns regarding workplace security will be documented during ER 
surveys. This information will be reviewed and evaluated by the committee and recommendations for 
improvement will be submitted to administration for consideration and approval.  

  
• The compressed gas cylinder handling training program was implemented in 2020. The online training 

course was assigned to employees that may handle large compressed gas cylinder during the performance 
of their duties (EMS, RT & Maintenance). PMH achieved a 100% course completion rate for this training.   

 

• Employee accident and injury data was monitored through the year, including a historical perspective of 
data from past years to establish a baseline. Trends are identified through monthly review of incident 
reports. Patient handling, STF and exposures are the top concerns moving forward for the remainder of 
2020 and in to 2021. (Please note 6 of 8 exposures were related to COVID-19) 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



C:\Users\kmellema\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\DUCDFCCP\PMH EOC Report - 2020.docx                                                                                  Page 7 
of 9 

 
Effectiveness 
 

• The PMH safety program brought visibility, attention, and resources to safety throughout this reporting 
period. To date, the overall number of incidents have increased by 8% as compared to 2019 data for this 
time of the year. However, if the COVID-19 related incidents were removed, the overall number of incidents 
have been reduced by 17% to date.  
 

• New employee orientation, refresher, and departmental specific safety training is considered satisfactory 
based on employee knowledge assessments made during surveys and injury report analyses.    

 

• Environmental rounds survey team members have remained effective and have been recognized as an 
asset in ensuring ongoing organizational safety and survey readiness.    

 
2021 Work Plan 
 

• Continue to raise employee awareness on overall safety in the workplace with emphasis placed on 
preventing STFs, patient handling and exposure prevention through monthly safety newsletters, emails and 
special publications.  

 

• The success of the safety awareness program will be measured by ongoing evaluations of incident reports 
and the types and frequency of injuries as compared to data from 2020. The awareness program will 
continue to focus on identified trends, with safety articles targeting types of incidents as they occur 
throughout the year.  

 

• Work in collaboration with the EPC on developing and implementing a shelter-in-place/evacuation tabletop 
exercise.  

 

• Work in collaboration with the Workplace Violence Prevention Task Force on refining PMH’s prevention 
plan and the establishment of District wide a training program.  

 

 

Security Management Plan 
 

Objective: 
 

This program describes how the organization will maintain a security management plan to protect staff, 
patients, and visitors from harm. The objectives remain valid and appropriate. 
 
Scope: 
 

• The general scope of the plan continued to apply to hospital District operations.  

• The management of the plan was enhanced by continued participation of the SEOCC.  
 
Performance: 
 

• A Workplace Violence Prevention (WVP) Task Force was formed in 2020 to address new WVP plan 
requirements for healthcare settings. In addition to the required annual review, employers must now 
develop and implement a new plan every three years to prevent and protect employees from violence in 
the healthcare setting. The WPV Task force is comprised of both management and non-management 
employees, with representation from PMH clinics.  

 
The task force created an employee security assessment survey that was distributed to all staff via Survey 
Monkey. Survey responses will be received up to the end of 2020 and will be evaluated during the first 
quarter of 2021. Results of the evaluation will be incorporated into a revised version of the current WVP 
plan with the development of a training program to follow.  
 



C:\Users\kmellema\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\DUCDFCCP\PMH EOC Report - 2020.docx                                                                                  Page 8 
of 9 

• Reported security incidents to date in 2020 are few and minor in nature and were resolved by staff on duty 
at the time of occurrence. 
     

• A review of the 2020 Threat and Assault Log indicates a decrease in events as compared to this period in 
2019.   

 

Effectiveness: 
 

• After hours and weekend lockdown procedures for the lower level of the hospital have continued to be 
successful in preventing unauthorized access and property damage. Lockdown includes both elevators and 
the upper level door to the south courtyard. To date, no incidents involving the lower level were reported.   
 

• Security improvements implemented in the Emergency Services department have proven effective in 
providing additional layers of security and preventing security breaches after hours.   
 

• The security camera system continues to be an effective tool for investigating and assessing reported 
incidents. Seven new replacement security cameras were purchase and installed in 2020. Five for the 
hospital exterior and two for the pharmacy. The new cameras can be viewed 24/7 on any PC or smart 
phone equipped with the proper application and permission level. The new cameras are a great 
improvement and offer enhanced picture quality, larger storage capacity and several programmable 
features (facial and object recognition, etc.) that were previously unavailable. Additional replacement 
cameras will be arriving in 2021 and cameras will be installed to cover sensitive areas of the hospital that 
are not currently covered. PMH clinics are not equipped with cameras currently but will have camera 
systems installed in 2021.  

 

• The organization-wide Compliance Hotline continued in place through 2020, providing another mechanism 
to report and control waste, fraud, and abuse throughout our hospital District.  All employees receive 
training on Corporate Compliance annually. 

 
2021 Work Plan 
 

• Investigate and assess all security incidents. Formulate and implement corrective actions where indicated.  
 

• Utilize security assessment information gathered from the revised Environmental Rounds form to assess 
security needs and make recommendations and corrective actions as indicated.  

 

• Work with the IT department on the installation of new security cameras in the hospital and PMH clinics.  
 

 
Utilities Management Plan  

 

Objective: 
 

• This program describes how the organization will promote a safe, controlled environment of care through 
reliable utility systems with minimum failures. This objective remains valid and appropriate to standards. 

 

Scope: 
 

• This plan continues to address the utility system management needs at the hospital and associated District 
facilities.  

 
Performance: 
 

• An ongoing program for utility system inspection, testing, and preventive maintenance was conducted. 
 



C:\Users\kmellema\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\DUCDFCCP\PMH EOC Report - 2020.docx                                                                                  Page 9 
of 9 

• The number of equipment and system failures to date indicates an increase as compared to this time in 
2019. This can be attributed to an aging plant and obsolete equipment. Several equipment repairs and 
replacements occurred throughout the year.  

 
 

• The present condition and readiness of utility systems and equipment is considered satisfactory based on 
regular checks during inspections and a comprehensive, documented preventive maintenance program. 

 

• Emergency power generators and systems were inspected and tested in accordance with current NFPA 
standards throughout the year, with no problems or malfunctions encountered.  

 

• Utility systems preventive maintenance completion and testing statistics are included in monthly quality 
assurance reports. 

 

• The utilities management equipment inventory was updated throughout the year to reflect additions to and 
deletions from the preventive maintenance program.  

 
Effectiveness: 
 

• Utility management, preventive maintenance and repairs proved to be effective throughout the year in 
maintaining a safe and comfortable environment for patient care despite the occasional disruption of 
services due to unexpected equipment failures. 

 
2021 Work Plan 
 
Due to the advanced age of the hospital’s plant operations equipment and systems, the maintenance 
department will continue to take proactive measures to ensure reliability and to extend the useful life of critical 
systems and equipment.  
 
Examples include: 
 

• Enhanced focus on the timely performance of preventive maintenance activities. 
 

• Survey of equipment and systems to identify key replacement parts and controls that are or will become 
obsolete. 

 

• Procure spare parts as indicated by the equipment/systems survey.  
 

• Perform proactive equipment and component replacement on critical hospital systems.  
 
 
 
Submitted by:  Steve Broussard, Director of Support Services               Date: December 9, 2020 



Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT FF











Carol Allen
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT GG







ATTACHMENT HH

RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE MEDICAL STAFF
PROSSER PUBLIC HOSPITAL DISTRICT

DBA PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH

6. Certifications

6.1 Certification requirements shall be the same for Active, Active Community, Courtesy,
Consulting, Telemedicine, Allied Health Professional or Locum Tenens staff.

6.2 Each provider must be Board Certified in their practice specialty; or Board Eligible at the
time of

initial approval of privileges, and Board Certified within 3 years of PMH Board Approval
of

privileges.  Board Certification must be maintained in the provider practice specialty.

6.3 Each provider must be Board Eligible/Certified in their practice specialty and maintain
the following Certifications unless otherwise defined below:

a) Emergency physicians: ACLS, ATLS and PALS, unless Board Certified in Emergency
Medicine.
b) Emergency PACs and ARNPs: ACLS, ATLS and PALS
c) CRNAs: ACLS, PALS and NRP
d) Hospitalists/Internal Medicine: ACLS
e) General Surgeons: ACLS and ATLS
f) Surgeons other than General Surgeons: ACLS
g) Family Practice physicians:

 Adult – ACLS
 Pediatric – PALS and NRP*
 Obstetrical – NRP*

h) Pediatricians: PALS and NRP*
i) OB/GYNs: ACLS and NRP
j) ARNPs: ACLS, NRP* and PALS**
k) PACs: BLS, and if providing OB services: ACLS and NRP*
l) RNFAs: OR Certification and ACLS
m) Anesthesiologists: ACLS

*Not required for providers whose practice is limited to the outpatient setting only
**Not required for providers whose practice is limited to adults only

6.4 Exceptions to the ACLS, ATLS, PALS and NRP certification requirement(s) are extended to
PMH

privileged providers who do not provide direct patient care at a Prosser Memorial Health
facility.


	Board Work Session - Agenda
	Board Meeting - Agenda
	Patient Care Scorecard 2020
	Strategic Plan Scorecard 2020
	Board Work Session Minutes 11.17.20
	Board Meeting Minutes 11.19.20
	Finance Committee Agenda 12.16.20
	Finance Committee Minutes 10.28.20
	Finance Committee Minutes 11.18.20
	CEO Memo
	ATTACHMENT  A - 2021 Strategic Plan
	ATTACHMENT B - 2020 PMH Marketing Plan
	ATTACHMENT C - 2021 PMH  IT PLAN
	ATTACHMENT D - Project Visioning
	ATTACHMENT E - Project Visioning Goals & Strategies
	ATTACHMENT E1 - WA STATE CPARB
	ATACHMENT F - Owner's Rep Schedule
	ATTACHMENT G - WA Nat. Gas. Climate
	ATTACHMENT H - CA - Fossit Fuel
	ATTACHMENT J - bcdg Agenda 
	ATTACHMENT  L - Replacement Facility Design Development
	ATTACHMENT M - Nuclear Med Update

	ATTACHMENT N - KDA Chardonnay Clinic TI
	ATTACHMENT O - WSHA Operational Overview
	ATTACHMENT P - 2021 Medical Staff Model & Provider Recruitment/Succession Plan 2014-2024
	ATTACHMENT Q - Holiday Festivities
	ATTACHMENT R - 2020 ASPIRE Medal Award Winners
	ATTACHMENT S - November Financials
	ATTACHMENT T - 2021 Operating & Capital Budget
	ATTACHMENT V - Governor's Proclomation re Non-Urgent Procedures
	ATTACHMENT W - WSHA Memo re Non-Urgentt Procedures
	ATTACHMENT X - AHA Azar Letter
	ATTACHMENT Y - COVID Relief Funds
	ATTACHMENT Z - COVID Financial Plan
	ATTACHMENT AA - Board Policy -  Board Evaluation
	ATTACHMENT BB - Board Policy - Confidentiality
	ATTACHMENT CC - Board Policy - Designation of Privacy Officers
	ATTACHMENT DD - Licensure and Accreditation Requirements
	ATTACHMENT EE - Environment of Care Report 2020  and 2021 EOC Plan
	ATTACHMENT FF - Washington Poison Center
	ATTACHMENT GG - AHA Rural Health Care Leadership Virtual Conference
	ATTACHMENT HH - PMH Medical Staff - Rules & Regs - Certfication



